
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2025 - 6:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. ROLL CALL.

VI. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VII. RECOGNITION OF (NEW) EMPLOYEES.
1. John Truselo, PT Facility Maintenance Technician, Public Buildings.

VIII. PROCLAMATIONS:
1. Black History Month.

IX. PRESENTATIONS:
1. Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan, Nate Halubka, Project Consultant, McGill

Associates.

X. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Copper Creek Phase 3 Annexation.

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

XII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes.
2. Budget Amendment 2024-2025-6.
3. Vision Zero Steering Committee.
4. Schedule Public Hearing; Neal Rezoning.
5. Schedule Public Hearing; Mellon Rezoning.
6. T. A. Loving Change Order #1.
7. Approval of Offer to Purchase – Laurie Ellis Road Land Transaction



XIII. OLD BUSINESS:
1. Subordination Agreement – Christ Covenant Church.
2. Ordinance Update – Chapter 32 – Town Organizations, Section 32.002 – Police

Department/General Supervision.
3. Cemetery Expansion Project Update.

XIV. NEW BUSINESS:
1. NCDOT – Old Tar Rd Widening Options: Poles, Signs, landscaping, and Street Lighting.
2. Approval of Financing Terms and Agreement.
3. Redesign of Town Hall and Downtown Parking.
4. Cooper’s Cup Parking.
5. Electric Relay Proposal.
6. Mid-East Representative.
7. Stormwater Advisory Board Appointee.

XV. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

XVI. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XVII. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

• Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, February 17, 2025 @ 7:00 pm - Town
Hall Assembly Room.

• Mid-East Digital Inclusion Plan Open House: Tuesday, February 18, 2025; 4:00 pm –
7:00 pm - Pitt County Agricultural Center, Mark W. Owens Auditorium, 403 Government
Circle, Greenville, NC 27834.

• Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, February 18, 2025 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

• Stormwater Advisory Board Meeting: Wednesday, February 19, 2025 @ 6:00 pm –
Operation Center.

• Coffee with a COP: Friday, February 21, 2025; 9:00 am – 10:30 am – Cooper’s Cup,
2588 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC.

• Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center.

• March Agenda Abstracts Due: Wednesday, February 26, 2025.

• Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, February 27, 2025 @ 7:00 – Town Hall
Executive Conference Room.

• Agenda Review Meeting: Thursday, March 6, 2025 @4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive
Conference Room.

• April 2025 Newsletter Information Due: Friday, March 7, 2025.

• Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, March 10, 2025 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

XVIII. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN MANAGER, TOWN ATTORNEY, TOWN COUNCIL, AND
MAYOR.

XIX. CLOSED SESSION:
NCGS § 143-318.11. (5) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating
agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in
negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for
the acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the
amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment contract or
proposed employment contract.

XX. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



PROCLAMATION 
BLACK HISTORY MONTH 2025 

WHEREAS, we celebrate Black History Month in February to recognize and honor the profound 
contributions, achievements, and resilience of Black Americans throughout our nation’s history; and 

WHEREAS, Black history is an integral part of American history, encompassing the struggle for 
freedom and equality, the pursuit of excellence in arts, science, education, public service, and countless other 
fields, and the enduring legacy of courage, leadership, and determination that continues to inspire us all; and 

WHEREAS, the theme for Black History Month 2025, “African Americans and Labor,” focuses on the 
various and profound ways that work intersects with the collective experiences of Black people; and 

WHEREAS, Black leaders throughout our nation’s history, have worked tirelessly to create a more 
fair, just, and equitable society; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month affords special opportunity to become more knowledgeable about black 
heritage, and to honor the many black leaders who have contributed to the progress of our nation; and. 

WHEREAS, we pay special honor to these African Americans that served or are serving our Community on 
the Town Council: Calvin Henderson, Willie Jones, William Worthington, William Clark, William Elbert, Velma Harper, 
Veronica Roberson, Johnny Moye, Ricky Hines, Brandy Harrell, and Shantel Hawkins; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of their determination, hard work, intelligence and perseverance, African Americans 
have worked tirelessly to maintain and promote a valuable and lasting contribution to the Town of Winterville, our 
state, and nation achieving exceptional success in all aspects of society including business, education, politics, 
economy, culture, science, arts, and history; and 

WHEREAS, this observance affords special opportunity to become more knowledgeable about black 
heritage, and to honor the many black leaders who have contributed to the progress of our nation and community; 
and 

WHEREAS, such knowledge can strengthen the insight of all our citizens regarding the issues of human 
rights, the great strides that have been made in the crusade to eliminate the barriers of equality for minority groups, 
and the continuing struggle against racial discrimination and poverty; and 

WHEREAS, much of the Town of Winterville's honor, strength and stature can be attributed to the diversity of 
cultures and traditions that are celebrated by the residents of this community; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I do hereby proclaim February 2025 as “Black History Month” 
and we honor the contributions of Black residents who have enriched our community through their leadership, 
service, and cultural contributions and call upon all community members to reflect on the significant achievements 
of Black Americans. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 10th day of 
February 2025. 

Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
3



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Presentations 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Diane White, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Presentation of Final Parks & Recreation Comprehensive Plan. 

Action Requested: Adoption of Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan. 

Attachment: Copy of Powerpoint Presentation. 

Prepared By: Diane White, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025

Supporting Documentation 

Mr. Nate Halubka will present the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan. This is the final version of the 

Plan, presented to Council for adoption. 

Mr. Nate Halubka is a Project Consultant with McGill Associates. McGill Associates is the firm the Town 

contracted to complete the Comprehensive Plan and Site-Specific Plan. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council Adopt the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan. 

4



To
w

n
 o

f 
W

in
te

rv
ill

e

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 P

la
n

 

5



Th
e 

Tw
o

 V
ie

w
s 

o
f 

R
ec

re
at

io
n

 O
ff

er
in

gs

Lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ts

 g
e

n
e

ra
l f

al
l s

o
m

ew
h

e
re

 a
lo

n
g 

th
is

 s
p

e
ct

ru
m

P
ar

ks
 

&
R

e
cr

e
at

io
n

 

P
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 R
e

cr
e

at
io

n
 

as
 a

n

EX
P

EN
SE

Si
m

ila
r 

to
 a

 p
o

lic
e 

d
e

p
ar

tm
en

t 
o

r 
a 

fi
re

 
d

e
p

ar
tm

en
t.

 

M
o

n
ey

 g
o

es
 in

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 c

o
m

e 
o

u
t

N
o

th
in

g 
m

o
re

, n
o

 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 

th
e

 b
o

tt
o

m
 li

n
e

P
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 R
e

cr
e

at
io

n
 

as
 a

n

IN
V

ES
TM

EN
T

Yo
u

 g
et

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
b

u
t 

yo
u

 a
ls

o
 g

et
 t

h
e

 
e

co
n

o
m

ic
 d

iv
id

en
d

s 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t

M
o

n
ey

 g
o

e
s 

in
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

co
m

e 
o

u
t

+
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 R
O

I c
o

m
e

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 in

ve
st

m
e

n
t

Th
is

 s
p

e
ct

ru
m

 g
e

n
er

al
ly

 
ga

u
ge

s 
h

o
w

 le
ad

e
rs

h
ip

 v
ie

w
s 

p
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 r
e

cr
e

at
io

n
  

6



R
es

ea
rc

h
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

Th
at

 P
ar

ks
 A

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 
A

ct
s 

M
o

re
 L

ik
e 

A
n

 IN
V

ES
TM

EN
T

So
u

rc
es

: 
1

. “
Th

e 
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 Im

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
Pa

rk
s:

 A
n

 E
xa

m
in

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 E
ff

ec
ts

 o
f 

O
p

er
at

io
n

s 
an

d
 C

ap
it

al
 S

p
en

d
in

g 
b

y 
Lo

ca
l P

ar
k 

an
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 A
ge

n
ci

es
 o

n
 t

h
e 

U
S 

Ec
o

n
o

m
y.

 
2

. C
ro

m
p

to
n

, J
.L

. 2
0

0
1

. P
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 P
A

S 
R

ep
o

rt
 N

o
. 5

0
2

. A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g 

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
, C

h
ic

ag
o

, I
lli

n
o

is
.

3
. C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 S

tu
d

ie
s:

 M
ic

h
ig

an
 S

ta
te

 U
n

iv
er

si
ty

: 2
0

0
7

 Q
u

an
ti

fy
in

g 
th

e 
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 Im

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
Ev

en
ts

 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

V
al

u
e

s 
In

cr
e

as
e

: 
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 r

es
ea

rc
h

 h
as

 
d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

d
 c

o
n

si
st

en
tl

y 
th

at
 

h
o

m
es

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 lo

ca
te

d
 n

ea
r 

p
ar

kl
an

d
s

h
av

e 
h

ig
h

er
 v

al
u

es
 t

h
an

 
th

o
se

 lo
ca

te
d

 f
ar

th
er

 a
w

ay
. H

ig
h

er
 

h
o

m
e 

va
lu

es
 n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 b

en
ef

it
 t

h
e 

o
w

n
er

s 
o

f 
th

es
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 b
u

t 
al

so
 

ad
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ta

x 
b

as
e 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
. 1

. 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t:
 

Pa
rk

s 
an

d
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
 im

p
ro

ve
s 

th
e 

q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
lif

e 
in

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 

b
en

ef
it

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
n

o
m

ic
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

f 
a 

re
gi

o
n

. E
ig

h
ty

-s
ev

en
 p

er
ce

n
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 e

xe
cu

ti
ve

s 
re

sp
o

n
d

in
g 

to
 a

 
2

0
2

3
 A

re
a 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

su
rv

ey
 r

at
ed

-
q

u
al

it
y-

o
f 

lif
e 

fe
at

u
re

s 
as

 a
n

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

fa
ct

o
r 

fo
r 

a 
h

ea
d

q
u

ar
te

rs
, f

ac
to

r 
o

r 
o

th
er

 
co

m
p

an
y 

fa
ci

lit
y.

 1.

V
is

it
o

r 
Sp

e
n

d
in

g:
 

M
an

y 
lo

ca
l p

ar
k 

an
d

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

 a
ge

n
cy

 
am

en
it

ie
s 

sp
u

r 
to

u
ri

sm
 t

o
 t

h
ei

r 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 lo
ca

le
s,

 g
en

er
at

in
g 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 a
ct

iv
it

y,
 in

cl
u

d
in

g 
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
lim

it
ed

 t
o

 in
cr

ea
se

d
 s

al
es

, l
o

ca
l 

re
st

au
ra

n
ts

/b
ar

s 
an

d
 h

o
te

ls
1

.

8
%

-2
0

% 2
.

A
ve

ra
ge

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 v

al
u

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 

o
f 

Ex
e

cu
ti

ve
s 

w
an

t 
se

e
 q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

lif
e 

as
 

im
p

o
rt

an
t 

w
h

en
 lo

ca
ti

n
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

7
5

%
Ev

e
n

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a 
m

at
te

r 
o

f 
IF

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 h

av
e

 a
n

 
im

p
ac

t,
 b

u
t 

h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 o
f 

an
 im

p
ac

t 
it

 w
ill

 h
av

e
 3

. 

7



S
ta

te
 F

u
n
d
s

$
5
0
0
k
 M

a
x

Fe
d

e
ra

l F
u

n
d

s 
$

5
0

0
k 

M
ax

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
T
ra

il
s 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

te
 L

a
n
d
 

P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 

W
a
te

rw
a
y
s 

G
ra

nt
s 

Le
ve

ra
ge

th
at

 L
o

ca
l I

n
ve

st
m

en
t

1
.

El
ig

ib
ili

ty
: 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 Is
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

al
l t

h
es

e 
fu

n
d

s 
2

.
Pa

rt
n

e
ri

n
g:

 P
ar

tn
e

ri
n

g 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ts
 is

 
p

o
ss

ib
le

. N
o

n
-p

ro
fi

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

ty
p

ic
al

ly
 e

lig
ib

le
3

.
Le

ve
ra

gi
n

g 
lo

ca
l f

u
n

d
s:

 T
h

es
e

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
re

 g
re

at
 w

ay
s 

to
 

le
ve

ra
ge

 lo
ca

l i
n

ve
st

m
en

ts
 o

f 
fu

n
d

s.
  

4
.

Ke
y 

co
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

s:
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
is

 c
ri

ti
ca

l i
n

 r
ec

ei
vi

n
g 

al
l t

h
es

e 
fu

n
d

s 
5

.
P

u
b

lic
 In

p
u

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 n

e
ed

s 
an

d
 w

an
ts

 a
re

 t
h

e
 b

ac
kb

o
n

e 
o

f 
ju

st
if

yi
n

g 
th

es
e 

fu
n

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

fu
n

d
in

g 
b

o
d

y.
 

N
ew

 N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
Pa

rk
 

fu
n

d
s 

ad
d

ed
 t

h
is

 y
ea

r.
 

A
cc

es
si

b
le

 P
ar

ks
 G

ra
n

t 

G
re

at
 T

ra
ils

 S
ta

te
 F

u
n

d
in

g 

Th
e

 F
re

e
 G

ra
n

t 
Fu

n
d

 M
yt

h

Th
in

k 
o

f 
gr

an
ts

 a
s 

lik
e 

yo
u

r 
4

0
1

k 
m

at
ch

 t
h

at
 y

o
u

r 
em

p
lo

ye
r 

o
ff

er
s

W
h

y 
sh

o
u

ld
 y

o
u

r 
co

m
p

an
y 

gi
ve

 y
o

u
 f

re
e 

re
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

s 
if

 y
o

u
 d

o
n

’t
 f

in
d

 it
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
en

o
u

gh
 t

o
 in

ve
st

 

W
h

ile
 f

re
e 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
s 

d
o

 h
a

p
p

en
, i

t’
s 

lik
e 

b
a

si
n

g
 y

o
u

r 
re

ti
re

m
en

t 
p

la
n

s 
o

n
 a

 r
ic

h
 u

n
cl

e/
a

u
n

t’
s 

b
en

ev
o

le
n

ce

8



1
0

4
6

2
1

0
6

0
7

1
0

7
5

2

1
0

9
9

7

1
1

2
4

8

1
1

5
0

4

1
1

7
6

7

1
2

0
3

5

1
2

3
0

9

1
2

5
9

0

1
2

8
7

7

1
3

1
7

1

1
3

4
7

1

1
3

7
7

8

1
4

0
9

2

1
0

,0
0

0

1
0

,5
0

0

1
1

,0
0

0

1
1

,5
0

0

1
2

,0
0

0

1
2

,5
0

0

1
3

,0
0

0

1
3

,5
0

0

1
4

,0
0

0

1
4

,5
0

0

1
5

,0
0

0 2
0

2
0

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
8

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
4

W
in

te
rv

il
le

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 E
st

im
a

te

W
in

te
rv

ill
e 

is
 g

ro
w

in
g:

 
A

ttr
ac

tin
g 

co
m

m
ut

er
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
th

at
 w

or
k 

fr
om

 h
om

e

9



B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 y

ou
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t: 

A
pp

ro
ac

hi
ng

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l m

ed
ia

n 
le

ve
l

 $
-

 $
5

0
.0

0

 $
1

0
0

.0
0

 $
1

5
0

.0
0

 $
2

0
0

.0
0

 $
2

5
0

.0
0

 $
3

0
0

.0
0

Percapita Spending

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 N

at
io

n
al

 B
en

ch
 M

ar
ks

W
in

te
rv

ill
e 

p
ar

ks
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

is
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
n

at
io

n
al

 
m

ed
ia

n
 a

n
d

 s
im

ila
r 

si
ze

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 $
-

 $
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 $
1

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

 $
1

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

 $
2

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

 $
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

 $
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

Ye
ar

 1
Ye

ar
 2

Ye
ar

 3
Ye

ar
 4

Ye
ar

 5
Ye

ar
 6

Ye
ar

 7
Ye

ar
 8

Ye
ar

 9
Ye

ar
 1

0

Lo
n

g-
te

rm
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
p

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
 in

ve
st

m
en

t

N
at

io
n

al
 L

o
w

e
r 

Q
u

ar
ti

le
W

in
te

rv
ill

e
 in

ve
st

m
en

t
N

at
io

n
al

 M
ed

ia
n

 Q
u

ar
ti

le
N

at
io

n
al

 U
p

p
er

 Q
u

ar
ti

le

W
in

te
rv

ill
e

10



P
ro

gr
am

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

ro
w

in
g 

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

1
2

0

R
ec

ra
ti

o
n

 P
ro

gr
am

s

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ft
b

al
l-

2
0

2
1

A
ll 

in
 o

n
 D

an
ce

-2
0

2
3

B
eg

in
n

in
g 

B
al

le
t-

2
0

2
3

C
h

e
er

le
ad

in
g-

2
0

2
1

C
h

e
er

le
ad

in
g-

2
0

2
2

C
h

e
er

le
ad

in
g-

2
0

2
3

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 M
u

si
ca

l T
h

ea
tr

e
-2

0
2

3

D
ad

d
y-

D
au

gh
te

r 
D

an
ce

-2
0

2
2

D
ad

d
y-

D
au

gh
te

r 
D

an
ce

-2
0

2
3

Fl
ag

 F
o

o
tb

al
l-

2
0

2
1

Fl
ag

 F
o

o
tb

al
l-

2
0

2
2

Fl
ag

 F
o

o
tb

al
l-

2
0

2
3

H
ip

 H
o

p
-2

0
2

3

K
ar

at
e-

2
0

2
2

K
ar

at
e-

2
0

2
3

P
ar

en
t 

&
 M

e 
P

ri
n

ce
ss

 B
al

le
t-

2
0

2
3

P
o

p
 S

ta
rt

 H
ip

 H
o

p
-2

0
2

3

6
8

3

6
6

8

7
1

3

B
A

SE
B

A
LL

-2
0

2
1

B
A

SE
B

A
LL

-2
0

2
2

B
A

SE
B

A
LL

-2
0

2
3

B
as

e
b

al
l T

o
ta

l 
P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n

11



W
an

t t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 w

an
ts

To
p

 n
ee

d
s 

ex
p

re
ss

ed
: 

1
. I

n
d

o
o

r 
re

cr
e

at
io

n
 

2
. I

m
p

ro
ve

d
 w

al
ki

n
g 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

3
. A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 a
th

le
ti

c 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

4
. A

 b
it

 o
f 

ad
ve

n
tu

re
5

. U
p

d
at

ed
/m

o
re

 p
la

yg
ro

u
n

d
s 

12



F
ac

ili
ty

 O
ut

lo
ok

K
ey

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
s

1
.

Yo
u

 h
av

e 
n

o
 in

d
o

o
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

2
.

Yo
u

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
p

ar
ks

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 b

u
ilt

 o
u

t.
 

3
.

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

n
o

 p
ar

ks
 w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ra
ilr

o
ad

 t
ra

ck
s.

 

4
.

A
lic

e 
K

ee
n

e 
Pa

rk
 (

P
it

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

) 
an

d
 B

o
yd

 L
ee

 

Pa
rk

 (
G

re
en

vi
lle

) 
ar

e 
b

o
th

 e
as

t 
o

f 
th

e 
To

w
n

 

C
en

te
r

5
.

Fr
o

m
 y

ea
rs

 5
-1

0
 y

o
u

’ll
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 t

o
 

la
n

d
b

an
k 

13



Q
ue

st
io

ns
?

14



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Copper Creek Phase 3 Annexation. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing for Annexation Petition. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Certified Mailings to Adjacent 
Property Owners; and Draft Ordinance (if approved). 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Terra Ventures Group, LLC; Manager Ashley Elks. 

Location: Reedy Branch Road, North of Copper Creek Section 1 and East of Copper Creek Section 2. 

Parcel Numbers: 80600. 

Site Data: 12.80 acres. 

Zoning District: R-12.5. 

Staff Analysis: 

Copper Creek Section 3 is an R-12.5 zoned parcel on Reedy Branch Road. The owner of the site would like 

to annex into the Town of Winterville's Corporate Limits. 

Anticipated Annexation Schedule: 

➢ 12/9/24: Direct Town Clerk To Investigate Sufficiency. 

➢ 1/13/25: Schedule Public Hearing. 

➢ 2/10/2025: Hold Public Hearing. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval of Annexation Petition. 
 

15



16



i'\C HWY

ELIZA WAY 

�� 
l\--'c�o21P:'!P:'.lEJ'R'-"'CrsR1sEE'i'

K'-'D"'R'---j

CRIMSON DR 

LEGEND: 
AC= ACRE 
CC= CONTROL CORNER 
C/L = CENTERLINE 
DB = DEED BOOK 
ECM = EXISTING CONCRETE MONUMENT
EIP = EXISTING IRON PIPE 
EIS = EXISTING IRON STAKE
EX = EXISTING 
IPS = IRON POINT SET
MB= MAP BOOK 
N/F = NOW. OR FORMERLY
NTS = NOT TO SCALE 
PG= PAGE 
RD= ROAD 
REF = REFERENCE 
R/W = RIGHT OF WAY 
SQ.FT = SQUARE FEET

LINE LEGEND 

NEW TOWN LIMIT LINE = 

� 1000' 

CRIMSON DR 

1i MAGNOLIA OR, OLD TOWN LIMIT LINE = ---------
TOWN LIMIT LINE =

GRAPHIC SCALE RANDifLORIA C 

VICINITY MAP 

1''=1000' 

PARCEL # 02386 
N/F 

TRUDY 0. JffFERSOI" BRILEY
DB 2021E; PG 309 

ZOIJE: AR 
ECM 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION 

I 
I 

\ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA PITT COUNTY 
I, KENNETH L. BIGGS, SR., CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT 
WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN 
ACTUAL FIELD SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY 
SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN 
BOOK ____ , PAGE ____ , OR FROM BOOKS 
REFERENCED HEREON); THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT 
SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM 
INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK ____ , PAGE _____ , 
OR AS REFERENCED HEREON; THAT THE RATIO OF 
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1: 10,000; THAT THIS 
PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 
47-30 AS AMENDED.
I FURTHER CERTIFY PURSUANT TO G.S. 47-31l
(f)(11)(d). THIS SURVEY IS OF ANOTHER CAH:GORY
AND IS AN EXEMPTION TO THE DEFINITION OF A 
SUBDIVISION. 
WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL THIS
THE _filb_ D v OF NOVEMBER , 2024. 

-- - -
NEW TOWN LIMIT 

100 50 o·

"' 
0 
z 

"' 
"' 

"' 

0 <z

Pt\RCEL # 02.386 
CJ/F 

TRUDY 0. JEFFERSOl'I BRILEY 
OB 2021 E; PG 309 

ZOl•IE: Af< 

-

N89.13'59"E 1616.80 

SITE DATA: 

ACREAGE ................ 12. 80 AC 
PARCEL NO ............ 80600 
NC PIN ................... 4674097161 
ZONING .................. AR 

-- ---

100' 

TOTAL: 

12.80 AC. 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF PITT 

I, __________ REVIEW OFFICER OF 
PITT COUNTY, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT TO 
WHICH THIS CERTIFICATION IS AFFIXED MEETS ALL 
THE STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING. 

REVIEW OFFICER 

DATE: ______ _ 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NC SUBDIVISION CERTIFICATION: 

EXEMPT PURSUANT TO SECTION 154.05 OF THE TOWN 
OF WINTERVILLE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE. 

TOWN PLANNER 

DATE: _____ _ 

SURVEY NOTES 

1. PROPERTY SURVEYED rs PARCEL NUMBER 80600, OWNED BY
TERRA VENTURES GROUP, LLC, CONTAINING 12.80 ACRES. 

2. NO TITLE OPINION OR TITLE COMMITMENT WAS PROVIDED BY THE
OWNER AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. 

3. ACREAGE CALCULATED BY THE COORDINATE METHOD.
4. COORDINATES ARE N.C. GRID UNITS ESTABLISHED WITH GPS.
5. NO N.C.G.S. HORIZONTAL CONTROL MONUMENTS FOUND WITHIN

2000 FEET OF THIS PROPERTY. 
6. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND MEASUREMENTS IN

FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
7. THAT THIS SURVEY IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OF LAND WITHIN A

COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY THAT HAS AN ORDINANCE THAT 
REGULATES PARCELS OF LAND. 

8. THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS, 
RIGHTS OF WAY, AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS WHICH MAY BE OF 
RECORD. 

9. REFERENCES:
DB 4521, PG 258 - SOURCE OF TITLE
MB 74, PG 79 

FLOOD NOTE 

THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD 
AREA (ZONE X). 
REFERENCES: 
EFFECTIVE FIRM 3720467400J, DATED 01/02/2004. 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE ETJ, CID 370193, PANEL 4674, SUFFIX J. 
EFFECTIVE FIRM 3720466400K, DATED 07/07/2014. 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE ETJ, CID 370193, PANEL 4664, SUFFIX K, 

PARCEL i¥ 51906 PARCEL // 01287 
1·1/F fl/F 

I TRUDY ORLEflE ,J. BRILEY 
l DC 107; PG 336 

i TRUDY or,LrnE J. BRILEY 
\ DC 1U7; PG 335 

I ZONE: AR 
I 

I
-"-

I ZONE: Ni I ------
\ -- -----
L--- --

---- - --QEIS 

NEW TOWN LIMIT 

EIP 

z 

G'l 

:ct\ 
z I. lz I 

\C 
s: 

-1 

(fl "' -----

-----
"' 

\ "' 

ANNEXATION MAP FOR 

COPPER CilEE'K, SECTION 3 

BEING A THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN DB 4521, PG 258 
AND TRACT 1 AS SHOWN ON MAP RECORDED IN MB 74, PG 79 

OF THE PITT COUNTY REGISTRY 
Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina 

Coastal Carolina Surveyors, PLLC 
Drawn by:KLB/CPT 

LAND SURVEYORS P-0790 Checked by: KLB 

PO Box 2768 . Winterville, �IC 28590 
KLB (252) 702-1427 
ken b iggs. ccsu rveyors@ya h oo. com 

Approved by: KLB 

Date: 11/08/2024 

Scale: 1" = 100' CCS Project No. 20240 9 
nilS DRAWING !S THE PROPERTY OF THE COA TAL CAROLINA SURVEYING, PLLC, ANY USE, REUSE, REPRODUCTION, DISPLAY OR SALE Of THIS DRAWlNG WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF TI-IE CQASTAL CAROLINA SURVEYING, PLLC IS STRICTLY PROH1611ID.--------------------------------------------.J..---------•'"----------...ii--...1----...11

Graphic Scale: 1"= 100'-0" ( • y • .I;. 
... - .. !

17



 

P O Box 154 Washington, NC  www.ibxengineering.com    252.945.2983 

INNER BANKS ENGINEERING, PC 

1 November 13, 2024 

 
Metes and Bounds Report Client: Terra Ventures Group, LLC 

Project Name: Copper Creek Phase 3 Project Description: 

Report Date: 11/8/2024 9:32:15 PM Prepared by: Marie Peedin, PE 

 

Metes and Bounds description Tax Parcel 80600 

Beginning at a point whose Northing is 647564.369 and whose Easting is 2471875.607 ; said point 

being a point on the western right of way line of Reedy Branch Road, thence 

N 6-16-46.00 W a distance of 333.16  ; thence 

S 89-13-59.00 W a distance of 1616.80  ;thence 

S 13-34-29.00 E a distance of 377.22;  thence 

N 87-54-26.00 E a distance of 1565.60  to the point of beginning. 

Total area of tract is 12.80 ac. 

18



19



20



21



22



23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville 

Annexation Ordinance 

 

Ordinance No: 24-O-021 

Property Annexed: Copper Creek Phase 3, Parcel 80600, Terra Ventures Group LLC.  

Ordinance Adopted: February 10, 2025 

Effective Date: February 28, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mail to: 

 

Town of Winterville 

PO Box 1459 

Winterville, NC 28590-1459 

 

 

24



Ordinance No. 24-O-021 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE  

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Carroll Crossing Phase 3- Parcel Number 80600 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the 

area described below; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has, by resolution, directed the Town Clerk to investigate 

the sufficiency of the petition; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public 

hearing on the question of annexation was held at the Winterville Town Hall at 6:00 pm on 

February 10, 2025 after due notice was given by publication on January 29, 2025 and February 

5, 2025; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 

160A-31; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 

North Carolina that: 

 

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described 

territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Winterville as of February 28, 2025: 

 
Beginning at a point whose Northing is 647564.369 and whose Easting is 2471875.607 ; said 
point being a point on the western right of way line of Reedy Branch Road, thence 
 
N 6-16-46.00 W a distance of 333.16 ; thence 
S 89-13-59.00 W a distance of 1616.80 ;thence 
S 13-34-29.00 E a distance of 377.22; thence 
N 87-54-26.00 E a distance of 1565.60 to the point of beginning. 
 
Total area of tract is 12.80 ac. 
 

 Section 2. Upon and after February 28, 2025, the above-described territory and its 

citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in 

the Town of Winterville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of 

the Town of Winterville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to NCGS 

160A-58.10. 

  

25



 

 Section 3. the Mayor of the Town of Winterville shall cause to be recorded in the Office 

of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in Raleigh, 

North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, 

together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such map shall also be delivered to the 

County Board of Elections, as required by NCGS 163-288.1. 

 

Adopted this the 10th day of February 2025. 

 

 

 

 

   

 Richard E Hines, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

  

26



 

North Carolina 

 

Pitt County 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted by 

the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, at a meeting held on February 10, 

2025 at 6:00 pm at the Town Hall in the Town of Winterville. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and have caused the official corporate 

seal of the Town of Winterville to be affixed, this ______ day of February 2025. 

 

 

 

  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 

 

 

North Carolina 

 

Pitt County 

 

I, Kristin L. Godley, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

certification, for the purpose therein expressed. 

 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this ______ day of February 2025. 

 

 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 

 

 

My Commission Expires: June 23, 2029 

27



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

❖ December 9, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes; and 

❖ December 12, 2024 Emergency Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

28



 

Page 1 of 32 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2024 – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 6:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Brandy Harrell, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shantel Hawkins, Councilwoman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 

Lisa Smith, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Chris Williams, Interim Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Ron Mills, Interim Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer 
Diane White, Parks and Recreation Director 

Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 
Angela Fuller, Human Resource Director 

Willie Gay, Building Inspector/GIS Technician 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Harrell gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hines led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public. 
 
ROLL CALL: All Present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker noted the amendment to the Agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
  

29



 

Page 2 of 32 

RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES: 

1. Tomeka Stevens - Customer Service Representative; Finance Department. 
2. Andrew Jones - Equipment Operator; Public Works Department. 
3. Anthony Smith - Utility Pump Maintenance Mechanic; Public Works Department. 
4. Brandon Smith - Utility Pump Maintenance Mechanic; Public Works Department. 
5. John Casey - Electric Line Technician: 1st Class; Electric Department. 
6. Haley Camden - Paramedic; FireRescueEMS. 
7. Allana Head - Office Manager; FireRescueEMS. 
8. Michael E. Hobbs – Sergeant; Police Department – recognized for achieving Criminal 

Investigator Specialist Certificate. 
 

APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO-TEM: 

 
Councilwoman Roberson nominated Johnny Moye for Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson said this gives a chance for more people to serve. Councilwoman Hawkins 
said we have a discrepancy and still moving forward and ignoring the situation. Mayor Hines said Rule 
20 was followed when Rice was appointed. Only Councilwoman Smith and Councilwoman Hawkins 
have not been Mayor Pro Tem. Councilwoman Smith said would it be appropriate for the policy to align 
with charter? 
 
Councilwoman Harrell nominated Brandy Harrell for Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
Councilwoman Hawkins said Rule 20 was not followed. Mayor Hines said nominations closed. 
 
Vote for Councilman Moye: Councilman Moye, Councilwoman Roberson, and Councilwoman 
Smith voted for Johnny Moye. Vote for Mayor Pro Tem Harrell: Mayor Pro Tem Harrell, and 
Councilwoman Hawkins voted for Brandy Harrell. Johnny Moye elected Mayor Pro Tem 3-2. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 2023-2024 Audit - Austin Eubanks with Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., 
P.A. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson noted that the wrong city is named on page 9. 
 
Austin Eubanks gave the following presentation saying that it was a clean audit: 

 

30



 

Page 3 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

31



 

Page 4 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

32



 

Page 5 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

33



 

Page 6 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

34



 

Page 7 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

35



 

Page 8 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

36



 

Page 9 of 32 

 

 
 

 

Town Manager Parker noted that a healthy fund balance is good to have for situations like happened in 
the west this year. Mayor Hines thanked them for their assistance. Finance Director Manning said 
thanks to Council and Staff for assistance. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Smith and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harrell to accept the 
Audit with the change of the Town name on page 9. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Villa Grande Phase 3 Annexation - Planning and Economic Development Director Penn gave the 
request with the following presentation: 
 

37



 

Page 10 of 32 

 
 

 
 

 
 

38



 

Page 11 of 32 

 
 

 

 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
annexation request. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the annexation request. John Thomas, 
project engineer asked if there were any questions. Councilwoman Roberson asked are there any 
drainage problems. John Thomas responded none that he is aware. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing closed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harrell to approve the Villa 
Grande Phase 3 Annexation. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Southbrook Planned Unit Development (PUD) Rezoning/Amendment - Planning and Economic 
Development Director Penn gave the request with the following presentation noting there are 
information packs at Council’s seat: 

39



 

Page 12 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

40



 

Page 13 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

41



 

Page 14 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

42



 

Page 15 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

43



 

Page 16 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

44



 

Page 17 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

45



 

Page 18 of 32 

 

 
 

 
 

 

46



 

Page 19 of 32 

Town Manager Parker asked why they are reducing size. Planning and Economic Development 
Director Penn said as a result of comments from Planning and Zoning Board. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
request. No one spoke 
 
Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the plan. 
 
Scott Moore, applicant noted the smaller size will make the development more inclusive, and more 
affordable to those in the area. The market study provided more options. Steadfast to build a quality 
community and build all size homes. Reasons for the change, flooding on west side; all run-off 
maintained on site. Collaborative effort will make the best product. Mayor Hines will the HOA be one or 
multiple. Scott Moore said there will be master HOA with the single-family homes having additional 
items. Councilwoman Roberson asked what does affordable mean. Scott Moore said they will work with 
builders and create incentives. Councilwoman Roberson where is the gas lines location. Scott Moore 
said nothing is in gas line easement. Town Manager Parker asked about drainage area maintenance. 
Scott Moore said they will be robustly maintained. Councilwoman Smith asked about the changes to 
the lot lines. Scott Moore said this allows for shifts with still meeting the standards. Town Manager 
Parker asked about the movement of lines. Planning and Economic Development Director Penn said 
small deviations, no added lots, and follow same condition as all others. Councilman Moye asked are 
the attached units together. Planning and Economic Development Director Penn said it is more than 
duplexes, multiple with a maximum of 7 units. Scott Moore noted as many as allowed. Councilwoman 
Roberson asked does this meet same requirements as Planning and Zoning Board reasonableness. 
Planning and Economic Development Director Penn they make for more answers. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing closed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 

 

 
Motion made by Councilwoman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to deny the 
Southbrook Planned Unit Development (PUD) Rezoning Amendment Request. 
 
Councilwoman Hawkins asked why this is a denial. Councilwoman Smith said the complete list of 
changes. Councilwoman Hawkins said the variations to the original plan, changes reflect more 

47



 

Page 20 of 32 

usefulness to community. Town Manager Parker noted Council had voted on the previous plan. 
Councilwoman Hawkins said variations and benefits are allowed. Councilwoman Smith said had 
problems in past. Mayor Pro Tem Harrell note the quality as well as affordability of homes. 
 
Motion carried, 3-2. Mayor Pro Tem Harrell and Councilwoman Hawkins opposed. 
 
Southbrook Annexation - Planning and Economic Development Director Penn gave the request with the 
following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

48



 

Page 21 of 32 

 
 

 
 

 

 

49



 

Page 22 of 32 

Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
annexation request. No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the annexation request. Scott Moore, 
applicant spoke in favor of the annexation. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing closed. 
 
Mayor Hines asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Hawkins to approve the 
Southbrook Annexation request. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Hines read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
1. Glenn Johnson: Main and Mill intersection, Mill and Vernon White intersection, Traffic and Pedestrian 
concerns. 
 
2. Lee and Toni Biscardi - Cooper’s Cup parking in front of business. 
 
3. Brandy Daniels – Update to concerns for Corbella’s Family Venue. 
 
4. Mat de Jesus – Intersection of Mill street and Boyd Street. 

• Councilwoman Hawkins said thank you for sharing this concern, a valid concern. Taken 
time to come. advocating for traffic control. Voted for signalization. Same flow as at 
Main Street and Mill Street. Steady flow of traffic. How do controls affect others. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ November 4, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Approval of 2024 calendars. 

➢ Draft 2025 Regular Council Meeting Calendar; and 
➢ Draft 2025 Agenda Review Council Meeting Calendar; and 
➢ Draft 2025-2026 Budget Calendar. 

3. Release and Refund of Taxes. 
4. Budget Amendment 2024-2025-4. 
5. Copper Creek Phase 3 Annexation - Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 
6. Hunsucker Rezoning - Schedule Public Hearing for January 13, 2025 Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harrell to approve 
the consent agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
NCLM Memorandum of Agreement – Human Resource Management Service. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted we have previously discussed this item, now have a HR person. Agenda 
includes the updated agreement. 
 

50



 

Page 23 of 32 

Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilwoman Smith to approve 
the NCLM Memorandum of Agreement – Human Resource Management Service. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Mayor Hines asked how long the study will take. Town Manager Parker said approximately 6 months. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Copper Creek Phase 3 Preliminary Plat - Planning and Economic Development Director Penn gave 
the following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

51



 

Page 24 of 32 

 
 

 
 

 

 

52



 

Page 25 of 32 

Mayor Hines asked will it connect to Sunshine lane. Planning and Economic Development Director 
Penn said no that would cross a ditch and Sunshine Lane is a private road. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Smith to approve the 
Copper Creek Phase 3 Preliminary Plat. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
2. Cornerstone Section 2 Phase 3 Final Plat - Planning and Economic Development Director Penn 
gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

53



 

Page 26 of 32 

 
 

 
 

 
 

54



 

Page 27 of 32 

 

 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
Cornerstone Section 2 Phase 3 Final Plat. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
3. Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat - Planning and Economic Development Director Penn gave the 
following presentation: 
 

 

 
Planning and Economic Development Director Penn noted that the Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary 
Plat cannot be approve since the rezoning was denied. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Harrell asked how soon can they reapply? Planning and Economic Development 
Director Penn said a new plat will need to be provided and go through the process again. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Town Manager Parker provided the following responses to previous Other Agenda Items: 
 

55



 

Page 28 of 32 

 
 

56



 

Page 29 of 32 

 

1. Accessory Dwelling Units. (Councilwoman Smith). 
Town Manager Parker noted Staff and Town Attorney Lassiter have reviewed. Suggest a work session 
the first of year. 
 
2. Street parking ordinance. (Councilwoman Smith). 
Councilwoman Smith said she has heard complaints of on street parking. Town Manager Parker noted 
the parking ordinance and various issues. Related issues can be covered in a work session because 
the public will have feelings and opinions. 

57



 

Page 30 of 32 

 
3. Downtown Revitalization. (Councilwoman Smith). 
Councilwoman Smith noted issues that have been brought forward, lighting, pavement makings, 
support businesses. Town Manager Parker said Vision Setting meetings will drill down into items. 
 
4. Limited Special Occasion and Special One-Time Permit processes (Mayor Pro Tem Harrell). 
Town Attorney Lassiter spoke to the legalities of state investigations. Mayor Pro Tem Harrell noted the 
community concerns and compliance with legalities be inclusive and include all for education. Mayor 
Hines important that all of Council understand before sharing with the public. Mayor Pro Tem Harrell 
said there are resources to prevent discriminatory practices. Councilwoman Roberson said Council 
needs to know. Town Manager Parker said we will work with ABC and put together. 
 
5. Agency assessment: Winterville Police Department. (Mayor Pro Tem Harrell). 
Mayor Pro Tem Harrell said we need to reach out for assessment of Police Department operations. 
Town Manager Parker said we will reach out to NCLM for assessment, not the Commission on 
Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies, Inc. (CALEA®) certified. Councilwoman Hawkins asked 
what is the timeline. Town Manager Parker said will update at January meeting. 
 
6. Updating Citizens on Intersection of Mill Street and Boyd Street. (Councilwoman Hawkins). 
Councilwoman Hawkins said we voted on the Intersection with a beacon light in interim, NCDOT did 
traffic count, then assessment. Explained differences. Assistant Town Manager Bowers will get 
verification of dates and explained Council actions and NCDOT interaction. Councilwoman Hawkins 
said the flashing beacon was an interim measure as we waited. Not going to discount NCDOT. Table to 
next month. Mayor Pro Tem Harrell asked what the Mill Street and connection with the sidewalk is. 
Assistant Town Manager Bowers said NCDOT money for sidewalk would not be there if Town takes 
over the street. 
 
7. Black History Program: February 2025. (Councilwoman Hawkins). 
Councilwoman Hawkins proposed a program with citizens, Human Relations Board, and youth, held in 
community room with activities. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Hawkins and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
a Black History Program for the month of February organized by the Winterville Human 
Relations Board and youth. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
8. Community Roundtable. (Councilwoman Hawkins). 
Councilwoman Hawkins asked that we host a community round table. Citizens have a time to discuss 
2-3 red button issues. Talk about some negative items, more transparency. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Hawkins and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harrell to approve a 
Community Round Table by Council or Winterville Human Relations Board. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
9. Year-End Review of Other Agenda Items Submitted by Councilwoman Hawkins in 2024: Results and 
Current Progress. (Councilwoman Hawkins). 
Councilwoman Hawkins said she has a year of things she has brought up. Has a sheet for handout to 
citizens? Town Manager Parker asked for copy and she would review and clarify any items. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Harrell asked for Staff to provide items needed for future work sessions. 
 
  

58



 

Page 31 of 32 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 

• January 2025 Newsletter Information Due: Thursday, December 9, 2024. 

• Cops on a Roof: Friday, December 13, 2024; 8:00 am – 3:00 pm – Walmart, 210 Greenville Blvd. 
SW. 

• Town-wide Christmas Activities: Saturday, December 14, 2024. 
➢ Parade is at 2:00 pm. 
➢ Christmas Market is 2:00 pm – 6:00 pm. 
➢ Tree Lighting Ceremony is at 5:00 pm. 

• Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, December 16, 2024 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall 
Assembly Room. 

• Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, December 17, 2024 @ 7:00 pm – Operation Center. 

• Stormwater Advisory Board: Tuesday, December 17, 2024 @ 6:00 pm – Operation Center. 

• Coffee with a Cop: Friday, December 20, 2024; 9:00 am - 10:30 am – Cooper’s Cup, 2588 Railroad 
Street. 

• Christmas Holidays - Town Offices Closed: Tuesday, December 24, 2024, Wednesday, December 
25, 2024 and Thursday, December 26, 2024. 

• Cancelled Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, December 24, 2024 @ 6:30 pm – Operation 
Center. 

• Cancelled - Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, December 26, 2024 @ 7:00 – Executive 
Conference Room. 

• New Year’s Holiday - Town Offices Closed: Wednesday, January 1, 2025. 

• January Agenda Abstracts Due: Thursday, January 2, 2025. 

• February 2025 Newsletter Information Due: Wednesday, January 8, 2025. 

• Agenda Review Meeting: Thursday, January 9, 2025 @4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive Conference 
Room. 

• Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, January 13, 2025 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 
Room. 

 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Town Attorney Lassiter: Thanks for party invite, dad is doing fine, reminder a closed session tonight. 
 
Councilwoman Smith: Thanks to the Staff and enjoyed the Christmas party. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Thanks for the party and congratulations to Earnest Lee on his retirement. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Harrell: Remember the reason for the season. 
 
Councilwoman Hawkins: Thanks for the party, Public Works Director McGuffin, Assistant Town 
Manager Bowers for their assistance, remember the Season of Giving. Organizational chart shows the 
citizens at the top. Merry Christmas. 
 
Councilman Moye: Thanks for staying, Staff is great. Thanks Council. Remember tomorrow is 
groundbreaking at Christ Covenant. Merry Christmas. 
 
Town Manager Parker: Last quarter has had challenges, Wish all a wonderful holiday season. 
 
Mayor Hines: Thanks Council, Mayor Pro Tem Harrell. He conveyed an appreciation statement. Merry 
Christmas and safe holidays. 
 
  

59



 

Page 32 of 32 

Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to go into Closed 
Session (NCGS § 143-318.11. (3) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public 
body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, 
which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a 
closed session and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a 
meeting that otherwise would be open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the 
public body is a participant. The public body may consider and give instructions to an attorney 
concerning the handling or settlement of a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or 
administrative procedure. If the public body has approved or considered a settlement, other 
than a malpractice settlement by or on behalf of a hospital, in closed session, the terms of that 
settlement shall be reported to the public body and entered into its minutes as soon as possible 
within a reasonable time after the settlement is concluded.). Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
Entered into Closed Session at 9:46 pm. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to return to Open 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
Purchase of Ellis Property. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 10:37 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of February 2025. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

60



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2024 – 5:30 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 5:30 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Brandy Harrell, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shantel Hawkins, Councilwoman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 

Lisa Smith, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager (by phone) 
Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL: All Present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to approve the 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
 
Town Attorney Lassiter: Discussion of contract to purchase real property, Happy Trails Farms, LLC; 
Parcel; #24482; 10.96 Acres. 
 
Town Attorney Lassiter updated Council on the matter stating that at the November Town meeting in 
Closed Session, Assistant Town Manager Bowers provided Council with information about the Town 
purchasing 10.96 aces, located adjacent to the Town Operation Center. The purchase price for this 
tract is $827,480.00. At the November meeting while in Closed Session, the Council indicated its 
willingness to contract with the owner of this land under these terms. Earlier this week at the December 
meeting, the Council approved a budget amendment to provide the funds to purchase this tract. After 
the November meeting, I met with the owner of the tract to discuss drafting an Offer to Purchase. He 
indicated that he would likely want to close on the purchase of the land to the Town in the spring or 
summer of 2025. However, he also told me that he may want to sell the land to the Town in mid-
December 2024. I asked him to let me know as soon as possible if he would want to close in December 
as that I would need time to draft the Offer to Purchase and prepare for the closing. In late November 
and early December, I began to draft the Offer to Purchase and to perform the title examination on the 
tract. However, earlier today the Seller contacted me and stated that he would like to close on the 

61



 

Page 2 of 2 

property before Christmas. I will be able to complete the title exam and conduct the closing within that 
time frame. However, I did not bring the Offer to Purchase to the December meeting for the Council's 
approval as that I did not know the Seller wanted to close in December until this morning. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Smith to authorize the 
Mayor to sign the Offer to Purchase and Contract with Happy Trails Farms, LLC. for Parcel 
#24482; 10.96 Acres for $827,480.00. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to authorize the 
Mayor to sign the Closing Documents with Happy Trails Farms, LLC. for Parcel #24482; 10.96 
Acres for $827,480.00. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 5:39 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of February 2025. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

62



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2024-2025-6. 

Action Requested: Approval of Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment. 

Prepared By: Jessica Manning, Finance Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the sixth budget amendment for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year. 

This budget amendment addresses the need to increase the budget by $57,715 for the use of Asset 

Forfeiture Funds to purchase a Police vehicle in the amount of $49,600 and to cover the vehicle upfit in the 

amount of $8,115 for the Police Department. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment will increase the budget in the amount of $57,715. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve the amendment. 

 

63



 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Account Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Appropriation General 10-0000-00 3831 57,715$         

Total 57,715$     -$           

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Department Account Increase Decrease

Authorized Forfeiture Allocation General Police 10-4310-00 4263 57,715$         

Total 57,715$     -$           

Richard E. Hines, Mayor

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following 

amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025:

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 24-25-6

Adopted the 10th day of February 2025.

64



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Vision Zero Task Force. 

Action Requested: Approve the establishment of the Vision Zero Task Force with recommended 
members. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town adopted their Vision Zero Resolution on November 14, 2022. That resolution requires us to 

develop an advisory committee, to help identify problems and provide solutions. The people recommended 

for the Committee are strategically selected as most of them are subject matter experts and are involved in 

the community. They will be tasked with developing an action plan for the Town. 

Organization 
Proposed initial 
representative Contribution towards goal 

Town administration Anthony Bowers Overall financial and strategic direction. 

Town Council Ricky Hines Liaison for town leadership. 

Police Chris Williams Knowledge of roadway injuries and safety issues. 

Fire David Moore 
Fire has historically given out bike helmets and hosted bike 
rodeos. 

MPO Jeff Rashko High-level regional perspective. 

NC DOT 
Len White 
or Jim Evans DOT manages most of our highest speed, highest injury corridors. 

Business Development Mark Smith 
Chairman of Council Commissions; politically and socially 
connected and Manages NC Driving School. 

Schools 
Lavetta Roundtree 
or William Dent Both from WH Robinson, they are enthusiastic supporters. 

Faith community 
James Godfrey Jones; 
or Damon Thomas Church perspective, including minority church representation. 

Community at large 
Tony Parker 
or Dave Manning 

Enthusiastic local cyclists who organize weekly Winterville bike 
rides and are well-connected across the community both in 
Winterville and Greenville. 

Safe Routes to School Kat Dale Coalition builder and Safe Streets advocate. 

 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Approve the establishment of the Vision Zero Task Force with recommended members. 
 

65



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Neal Rezoning. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for March 10, 2025. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application(s); Rezoning Map; Legal Description; and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Thomas Engineering (John Thomas). 

Location: On Old Tar Road - southeast of Old Tar and Laurie Ellis Road intersection. 

Parcel Numbers: 25801. 

Site Data: 45.81 Acres. 

Current Zoning District: Agricultural Residential (AR). 

Proposed Zoning District: R-10 Conditional District (CD): Condition is that A minimum of 10% of the 

development will remain open for passive recreation space. 

Comprehensive Plan/Future Land Use Plan Character Area: Suburban Residential Character Area. 

Staff Analysis: 

The 46.98-acre property is currently vacant and farmed land. The surrounding uses are dominated by single-

family detached homes and agricultural land. The Comprehensive Land Use Plan designates this area as 

"Suburban Residential Character Area" and supports an R 10 Rezoning with the condition that a minimum of 

10% of the land is to remain "open space". 

Therefore, the rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Comprehensive Land Use 

Plan, the Future Land Use Map and is compatible with the existing development and trends in the 

surrounding area. 

 

Please review the attached documents, staff report, Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and Zoning Ordinance 

for more detail and information on the proposal. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing for March 10, 2025. 
 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



Exhibit “A” 

Legal Description 

Winterville, Pitt County, North Carolina 

PARCEL 25801 

 

All that certain lot or parcel of land situate and being in Winterville Township, Pitt 

County, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows; 

 

 Beginning at a Point, Said Point being the southwestern most corner of Tract 3 as shown 

on that certain plat entitled “Survey for James D. Mellon and wife Margaret Ann Mellon Harris” 

dated April 7, 1995, as recorded in Map Book 45, Page 156 in the Pitt County Register of Deeds 

and being located in the Eastern right-of-way line of Tar Road, said point also being located a tie 

bearing and distance of North 87 degrees 11 minutes 28 seconds East for a distance of 30.66 feet 

from an existing PK Nail located in the centerline of Tar Road to the Point of Beginning; 

 

Thence, from Said Point of Beginning North 87 degrees 11 minutes 28 seconds East for a 

distance of 82.74 feet to a point; 

Thence, South 86 degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds East for a distance of 230.14 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 86 degrees 52 minutes 02 seconds East for a distance of 118.75 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 51 degrees 17 minutes 17 seconds East for a distance of 72.01 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 51 degrees 23 minutes 45 seconds East for a distance of 127.15 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 55 degrees 34 minutes 39 seconds East for a distance of 83.34 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 50 degrees 43 minutes 38 seconds East for a distance of 75.12 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 55 degrees 02 minutes 54 seconds East for a distance of 269.19 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 55 degrees 01 minutes 22 seconds East for a distance of 238.49 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 54 degrees 53 minutes 05 seconds East for a distance of 196.92 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 54 degrees 12 minutes 29 seconds East for a distance of 76.24 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 24 minutes 14 seconds West for a distance of 59.81 feet to a 

point;  

Thence, South 10 degrees 24 minutes 38 seconds West for a distance of 173.27 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 10 degrees 12 minutes 18 seconds West for a distance of 305.93 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 10 degrees 46 minutes 38 seconds West for a distance of 133.79 feet to a 

point; 

80



Thence, South 07 degrees 47 minutes 53 seconds West for a distance of 167.44 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 11 degrees 03 minutes 17 seconds West for a distance of 772.57 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 11 degrees 09 minutes 07 seconds West for a distance of 859.84 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 09 degrees 17 minutes 59 seconds West for a distance of 926.86 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 87 degrees 01 minutes 31 seconds West for a distance of 180.63 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 86 degrees 56 minutes 47 seconds West for a distance of 232.10 feet to a 

point in the Eastern right-of way line of Tar Road (S.R. 1700); 

Thence, along and with the Eastern right-of-way line of Tar Road North 00 degrees 15 

minutes 09 seconds West for a distance of 489.17 feet to a point; 

Thence, North 00 degrees 54 minutes 23 seconds West for a distance of 68.36 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 02 degrees 21 minutes 33 seconds West for a distance of 54.76 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 04 degrees 36 minutes 29 seconds West for a distance of 287.16 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 05 degrees 12 minutes 36 seconds West for a distance of 50.09 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 04 degrees 46 minutes 24 seconds West for a distance of 299.27 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 05 degrees 20 minutes 43 seconds West for a distance of 403.25 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 05 degrees 24 minutes 55 seconds West for a distance of 143.53 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 06 degrees 28 minutes 02 seconds West for a distance of 61.49 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 09 degrees 47 minutes 36 seconds West for a distance of 143.98 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 12 degrees 15 minutes 59 seconds West for a distance of 34.13 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 13 degrees 47 minutes 54 seconds West for a distance of 50.56 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 14 degrees 33 minutes 22 seconds West for a distance of 50.28 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, North 15 degrees 10 minutes 12 seconds West for a distance of 612.74 feet to the 

Point of Beginning. 

 

Containing 45.81 acres, more or less. 

 

 Together with and subject to all covenants, easements, and restrictions of record.  

 

End of Legal Description 

81



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 

Neal Rezoning and Mellon Rezoning.  
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT John Thomas (applicant and agent on behalf of the owners) 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-10 Conditional District (CD)  

CONDITIONS A minimum of 10% of the development will remain open for 
passive recreation space. 

LOCATION Southeastern Corner of Old Tar Rd and Laurie Ellis Rd.  

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 25801 & 14642.  

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request  & P&Z meeting on 1/9/25.  Notification was posted on site 
on 1/9/25.  39 properties were mailed notification.   

TRACT SIZE Parcel Number 25801 is 45.81 acres; Parcel number 14642 contains 
46.98 acres. Entire site contains 92.79 +/- acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Wooded and Agricultural Land.   

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant/ Wooded/Agricultural Uses.  

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N Laurie Ellis Road is directly to 
the north, on the north side of 
Laurie Ellis Road, contains the 
following adjacent Zoning 
Districts:  
CN (Neighborhood Commercial) 
and AR (Agricultural 
Residential).  

Vacant Agricultural Land north 
of Laurie Ellis Road.  

 W Old Tar Road is directly to the 
west of this property, on the 
western side of Laurie Ellis 
Road, contains the following 
Zoning Districts:  
AR (Agricultural Residential). 

Single Family Residential and 
Vacant agricultural land.  

82



 

2 
Staff Report 

E AR (Agricultural Residential). & 
Pitt County's "Rural 
Residential".  

Private School, Events Venue, 
and vacant agricultural land.  

S Pitt County's "Rural 
Residential". 

Single Family Residential,  

 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
A-R  

 
R-10 CD.  

MAX DENSITY TBD - AR allows for 20,000sf 
minimum residential lots.  

TBD- R-10 Allows for 10,000sf 
minimum residential lots.  

 
TYPICAL USES 

AR- Low density residential, 
agricultural uses, etc.  
 

R-10- medium density 
residential/single-family 
detached.   

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site Plan / Construction Plan required. 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Old Tar Road – NCDOT Street- Minor 
Thoroughfare.  
Laurie Ellis Roan – NCDOT Street- Minor 
Thoroughfare. 

83



 

3 
Staff Report 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Latest Traffic count on Old Tar Road, in front of 
this site 3100 AADT (2022); Latest Traffic count 
on Laurie Ellis Rd, near site (just to the east) 1200 
AADT (2022).  

Level Of Service (Transportation Analysis)  
Current= 2016 Study; Future= 2045 Projection.  
 
* LOS is rated from A-F: A is the best, F the worst. 
  
* Roadway Improvement and street design is 
based upon achieving a minimum of LOS D on 
existing facilities and LOS C on new facilities. 

Old Tar Road Existing Grade- A 
Old Tar Road Future Grade- A.  
 
Laurie Ellis Road Existing Grade- Very Low A.  
Laurie Ellis Road Future Grade- Very Low A.  

TRIP GENERATION TBD.  

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A – Rezoning Phase.  

OTHER N/A 

 
 

 

 

 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-10 with a condition in which 10% of the site is to remain open-space, for 
passive recreation meet the current development trends within the area and match the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan's recommendation for this area. The property is in an area 
that is receiving significant interest from residential developers.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a suburban residential character 

area. The Suburban Residential Character area is described as "primarily the large lot, 

single family detached residential that many people love about the town's housing stock. 

Generally 2-3 dwelling units per acre, larger lots, with front- and side-loaded garages. 

Smaller lot sizes are occasionally appropriate if minimum standards for open space and 

amenities are exceeded." 

84



 

4 
Staff Report 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   
 

1. General Character:  Large lot, low density single family residential was identified by the 

community as a land use type that was appropriate and valued in many locations. This 

flexible land use type is appropriate for many area of the planning area and will likely be 

served by Town Utilities.  

2. Uses: Primarily Single Family Detached Residential with sewer services.  

3. Potential Zones: 

o Typically: R-20, R-15, R 12.5.  

o R-10 or R-8 are potential zones if addition open space or amities are provided.  

▪ Additional Open Space, containing of passive recreation, trails, 

playgrounds, amenity centers, fields, and greens are categorized as at 

least 10% of the overall space which is to be dedicated as open 

space/amenities.  

▪  

Comprehensive Plan and Land Use - Recommendation: 

o Maintain and improve neighborhood character: 
o Encourage Open Space and amenities in new developments.  

 
o Reinforce the Town's Identity as a family-friendly community: 

o Support rezoning to residential uses in the Suburban Residential and Urban 
Neighborhood areas as identified on the future land use map.  

 
 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 92.79-acre property is currently vacant.  The surrounding properties are mostly vacant, 
agricultural land, with some rural residential homes.   The proposed R-10 CD rezoning is 
consistent with the development trends in the area and is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan.  
 

85



 

5 
Staff Report 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request from A-R to R-10 CD with the 

condition that requires 10% of the site to remain open space, upon development. 

 

 

86



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Mellon Rezoning. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for March 10, 2025. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application(s); Rezoning Map; Metes and Bounds Description; Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Thomas Engineering (John Thomas). 

Location: Southeastern Corner of Old Tar Rd and Laurie Ellis Rd. 

Parcel Numbers: 14642. 

Site Data: 46.98 Acres. 

Current Zoning District: Agricultural Residential (AR). 

Proposed Zoning District: R-10 Conditional District (CD): Condition is that A minimum of 10% of the 

development will remain open for passive recreation space. 

Comprehensive Plan/Future Land Use Plan Character Area: Suburban Residential Character Area. 

Staff Analysis: 

The 46.98-acre property is currently vacant and farmed land. The surrounding uses are dominated by single-

family detached homes and agricultural land. The Comprehensive Land Use Plan designates this area as 

"Suburban Residential Character Area" and supports an R 10 Rezoning with the condition that a minimum of 

10% of the land is to remain "open space". 

Therefore, the rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Comprehensive Land Use 

Plan, the Future Land Use Map and is compatible with the existing development and trends in the 

surrounding area. 

 

Please review the attached documents, staff report, Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and Zoning Ordinance 

for more detail and information on the proposal. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing for March 10, 2025. 
 

87



88



89



90



91



Exhibit “A” 

Legal Description 

Winterville, Pitt County, North Carolina 

PARCEL 14642 

 

All that certain lot or parcel of land situate and being in Winterville Township, Pitt 

County, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows; 

 

 Beginning at a Point, Said Point being the southwestern most corner of Tract 3 as shown 

on that certain plat entitled “Survey for James D. Mellon and wife Margaret Ann Mellon Harris” 

dated April 7, 1995, as recorded in Map Book 45, Page 156 in the Pitt County Register of Deeds 

and being located in the Eastern right-of-way line of Tar Road, said point also being located a tie 

bearing and distance of North 87 degrees 11 minutes 28 seconds East for a distance of 30.66 feet 

from an existing PK Nail located in the centerline of Tar Road to the Point of Beginning; 

 

Thence, from said Point of Beginning along and with the Eastern right-of-way line of Tar 

Road (S.R. 1700) North 14 degrees 45 minutes 04 seconds West for a distance of 441.16 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 14 degrees 36 minutes 41 seconds West for a distance of 621.73 feet to a 

point in the intersection of the Eastern right-of-way line of Tar Road and the Southern right-of-

way line of Laura Ellis Road (S.R. 1713); 

Thence, along and with the Southern right-of-way line of Laura Ellis Road North 71 

degrees 11 minutes 56 seconds East for a distance of 267.76 feet to a point; 

Thence, cornering South 14 degrees 32 minutes 08 seconds East for a distance of 361.75 

feet to a point; 

 Thence, North 78 degrees 16 minutes 32 seconds East for a distance of 346.54 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 16 degrees 48 minutes 57 seconds West for a distance of 195.54 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 88 degrees 31 minutes 00 seconds East for a distance of 50.03 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 07 degrees 27 minutes 58 seconds West for a distance of 130.18 feet to a 

point in the Southern right-of-way line of Laura Ellis Road; 

 Thence, along and with the Southern right-of-way line of Laura Ellis Road South 81 

degrees 18 minutes 12 seconds East for a distance of 41.20 feet to a point; 

 Thence, South 81 degrees 02 minutes 18 seconds East for a distance of 888.47 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, cornering South 20 degrees 23 minutes 28 seconds East for a distance of 467.17 

feet to a point; 

Thence, South 74 degrees 22 minutes 11 seconds East for a distance of 62.76 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 83 degrees 56 minutes 04 seconds East for a distance of 431.41 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 07 degrees 50 minutes 48 seconds East for a distance of 78.13 feet to a 

point; 

92



 Thence, South 51 degrees 33 minutes 42 seconds West for a distance of 253.96 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 04 degrees 58 minutes 06 seconds West for a distance of 1202.13 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 89 degrees 13 minutes 21 seconds West for a distance of 608.07 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 11 degrees 03 minutes 17 seconds East for a distance of 772.57 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 07 degrees 47 minutes 53 seconds East for a distance of 167.44 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 10 degrees 46 minutes 38 seconds East for a distance of 133.79 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 10 degrees 12 minutes 18 seconds East for a distance of 305.93 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 10 degrees 24 minutes 38 seconds East for a distance of 173.27 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 09 degrees 24 minutes 14 seconds East for a distance of 59.81 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 54 degrees 12 minutes 29 seconds West for a distance of 76.24 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 54 degrees 53 minutes 05 seconds West for a distance of 196.92 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 55 degrees 01 minutes 22 seconds West for a distance of 238.49 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 55 degrees 02 minutes 54 seconds West for a distance of 269.19 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 50 degrees 43 minutes 38 seconds West for a distance of 75.12 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 55 degrees 34 minutes 39 seconds West for a distance of 83.34 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 51 degrees 23 minutes 45 seconds West for a distance of 127.15 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, South 51 degrees 17 minutes 17 seconds West for a distance of 72.01 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 86 degrees 52 minutes 02 seconds West for a distance of 118.75 feet to a 

point; 

 Thence, North 86 degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds West for a distance of 230.14 feet to a 

point; 

Thence, South 87 degrees 11 minutes 28 seconds West for a distance of 82.74 feet to the 

Point of Beginning; 

Containing 46.98 acres, more or less. 

 

 Together with and subject to all covenants, easements, and restrictions of record.  

 

End of Legal Description 
 

93



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 

Neal Rezoning and Mellon Rezoning.  
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT John Thomas (applicant and agent on behalf of the owners) 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-10 Conditional District (CD)  

CONDITIONS A minimum of 10% of the development will remain open for 
passive recreation space. 

LOCATION Southeastern Corner of Old Tar Rd and Laurie Ellis Rd.  

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 25801 & 14642.  

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request  & P&Z meeting on 1/9/25.  Notification was posted on site 
on 1/9/25.  39 properties were mailed notification.   

TRACT SIZE Parcel Number 25801 is 45.81 acres; Parcel number 14642 contains 
46.98 acres. Entire site contains 92.79 +/- acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Wooded and Agricultural Land.   

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant/ Wooded/Agricultural Uses.  

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N Laurie Ellis Road is directly to 
the north, on the north side of 
Laurie Ellis Road, contains the 
following adjacent Zoning 
Districts:  
CN (Neighborhood Commercial) 
and AR (Agricultural 
Residential).  

Vacant Agricultural Land north 
of Laurie Ellis Road.  

 W Old Tar Road is directly to the 
west of this property, on the 
western side of Laurie Ellis 
Road, contains the following 
Zoning Districts:  
AR (Agricultural Residential). 

Single Family Residential and 
Vacant agricultural land.  

94



 

2 
Staff Report 

E AR (Agricultural Residential). & 
Pitt County's "Rural 
Residential".  

Private School, Events Venue, 
and vacant agricultural land.  

S Pitt County's "Rural 
Residential". 

Single Family Residential,  

 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
A-R  

 
R-10 CD.  

MAX DENSITY TBD - AR allows for 20,000sf 
minimum residential lots.  

TBD- R-10 Allows for 10,000sf 
minimum residential lots.  

 
TYPICAL USES 

AR- Low density residential, 
agricultural uses, etc.  
 

R-10- medium density 
residential/single-family 
detached.   

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site Plan / Construction Plan required. 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Old Tar Road – NCDOT Street- Minor 
Thoroughfare.  
Laurie Ellis Roan – NCDOT Street- Minor 
Thoroughfare. 

95



 

3 
Staff Report 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Latest Traffic count on Old Tar Road, in front of 
this site 3100 AADT (2022); Latest Traffic count 
on Laurie Ellis Rd, near site (just to the east) 1200 
AADT (2022).  

Level Of Service (Transportation Analysis)  
Current= 2016 Study; Future= 2045 Projection.  
 
* LOS is rated from A-F: A is the best, F the worst. 
  
* Roadway Improvement and street design is 
based upon achieving a minimum of LOS D on 
existing facilities and LOS C on new facilities. 

Old Tar Road Existing Grade- A 
Old Tar Road Future Grade- A.  
 
Laurie Ellis Road Existing Grade- Very Low A.  
Laurie Ellis Road Future Grade- Very Low A.  

TRIP GENERATION TBD.  

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A – Rezoning Phase.  

OTHER N/A 

 
 

 

 

 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-10 with a condition in which 10% of the site is to remain open-space, for 
passive recreation meet the current development trends within the area and match the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan's recommendation for this area. The property is in an area 
that is receiving significant interest from residential developers.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a suburban residential character 

area. The Suburban Residential Character area is described as "primarily the large lot, 

single family detached residential that many people love about the town's housing stock. 

Generally 2-3 dwelling units per acre, larger lots, with front- and side-loaded garages. 

Smaller lot sizes are occasionally appropriate if minimum standards for open space and 

amenities are exceeded." 

96



 

4 
Staff Report 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   
 

1. General Character:  Large lot, low density single family residential was identified by the 

community as a land use type that was appropriate and valued in many locations. This 

flexible land use type is appropriate for many area of the planning area and will likely be 

served by Town Utilities.  

2. Uses: Primarily Single Family Detached Residential with sewer services.  

3. Potential Zones: 

o Typically: R-20, R-15, R 12.5.  

o R-10 or R-8 are potential zones if addition open space or amities are provided.  

▪ Additional Open Space, containing of passive recreation, trails, 

playgrounds, amenity centers, fields, and greens are categorized as at 

least 10% of the overall space which is to be dedicated as open 

space/amenities.  

▪  

Comprehensive Plan and Land Use - Recommendation: 

o Maintain and improve neighborhood character: 
o Encourage Open Space and amenities in new developments.  

 
o Reinforce the Town's Identity as a family-friendly community: 

o Support rezoning to residential uses in the Suburban Residential and Urban 
Neighborhood areas as identified on the future land use map.  

 
 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 92.79-acre property is currently vacant.  The surrounding properties are mostly vacant, 
agricultural land, with some rural residential homes.   The proposed R-10 CD rezoning is 
consistent with the development trends in the area and is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan.  
 

97



 

5 
Staff Report 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request from A-R to R-10 CD with the 

condition that requires 10% of the site to remain open space, upon development. 

 

 

98



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Change Order No. 1 for TA Loving – Contractor for 2020 Sewer Pump station Project. 

Action Requested: Approve the Change Order. 

Attachment: Proposed Agreement. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/27/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

TA Loving is the general contractor responsible for building the Chapman Street and Church Street pump 

stations. This is the first Change order for this project. 

This project includes two work order directives. 

WO 1 – Simply changed the alignment of the force main to the east side of Chapman Street. It was originally 

proposed to be on the west side. This simplified the process due to the proximity of the proposed sewer 

force main on the west side was so close to other utility infrastructure. By moving it to the east side there 

were not as many obstacles to work around. This saved the town $80,700. 

WO 2 – There was additional excavation required to get the east side of the street. This was an increase of 

$10,367.06. 

Budgetary Impact: Contract Reduction in the amount of $70,332.94. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council Approve Change Order No 1 for TA Loving. 

 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Purchase of 1.648 acres of land from Pedro Balderas Ellis on Laurie Ellis Road. 

Action Requested: Approve the Offer to Purchase. 

Attachment: Offer to Purchase, and Site Survey 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/31/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/27/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff has negotiated to purchase 1.648 acres from Pedro Balderas Ellis in the amount of $65,920. This 

property’s intended use for the town will be for the construction of a satellite police/fire facility that will service 

the southeast portion of Town. 

Town Attorney Lassiter has drafted the offer to purchase with a closing date of April 1st. 

The offer price was $40,000 per acre and has verbally been accepted by the seller. 

Budgetary Impact: $65,920 to be purchased with fund balance. 

Recommendation: Approve the Offer to Purchase. 

 

107



Page 1 of 13 

This form jointly approved by: 

North Carolina Bar Association’s Real Property Section 

North Carolina Association of REALTORS, Inc. 

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT - VACANT LOT/LAND 

[Consult “Guidelines” (Form 12G) for guidance in completing this form] 

For valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Buyer offers to purchase and Seller 

upon acceptance agrees to sell and convey the Property on the terms and conditions of this Offer To Purchase and Contract and any 

addendum or modification made in accordance with its terms (together the “Contract”). 

1. TERMS AND DEFINITIONS: The terms listed below shall have the respective meaning given them as set forth adjacent to each 
term.

(a) “Seller”: Pedro Balderas Ellis, Trustee of the Laurie Howard Ellis, Jr. Exempt Decendent's Trust under the Laurie Howard Ellis, 
Jr. Trust dated May 19, 2015

(b) “Buyer”: Town of Winterville_______________________________________________________________________________

(c) “Property”: The Property shall include all that real estate described below together with all appurtenances thereto including the 
improvements located thereon.
The Property  will  will not include a manufactured (mobile) home(s).  

The Property  will  will not include an off-site and/or separate septic lot, boat slip, garage, parking space, or storage unit. 

NOTE: If a manufactured home(s) or a septic lot, boat slip, garage, parking space, or storage unit is included, Buyer and Seller are 

strongly encouraged to include further details in the Additional Provisions Addendum (Form 2A11-T) and attach it to this offer. 

Street Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City: ____________________________________________________________________________Zip:_____________________ 

County: ________________________________________________, North Carolina 

Legal Description: (Complete ALL applicable) 

Plat Reference: Lot/Unit______, Block/Section _______, Subdivision/Condominium _____________________________________ 

_________________________________________, as shown on Plat Book/Slide _______________ at Page(s) ________________ 

The PIN/PID or other identification number of the Property is: _______________________________________________________ 

Other description:  __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Some or all of the Property may be described in Deed Book ___________________________ at Page _______________________ 

NOTE: If seller is selling less than the entire parcel of land owned, then compliance with subdivision regulation and/or an adequate 

legal description of the land being sold must be considered. This contract should not be used to sell property by reference to, 

exhibition of, or any other use of a plat showing a subdivision of the property before the plat has been properly approved and 

recorded with the register of deeds as of the date of the contract. If a preliminary plat has been approved, this contract may be used 

if an addendum drafted by a North Carolina real estate attorney addressing certain statutory requirements is attached. See NC 

General Statutes Section 160D-807 for more details and possible exceptions. If Buyer is contemplating a subdivision of the land as 

a condition of purchase, Buyer should first consult with an NC real estate attorney.  

NOTE: Governmental authority over taxes, zoning, school districts, utilities and mail delivery may differ from address shown. 

NOTE FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION: If Seller is Buyer’s builder or has engaged a builder and the sale involves the construction 

of a new single-family dwelling prior to closing, use the standard Offer to Purchase and Contract—New Construction (Form 800-T) 

or, if the construction is completed, use the Offer to Purchase and Contract (Form 2-T) with the New Construction Addendum (Form 

2A3-T). 

NOTE: If there is a manufactured or mobile home on the Property (regardless of whether it is inhabitable, uninhabitable, a fixture, 

or not affixed), then Seller should complete the Residential Property and Owners’ Association Disclosure Statement and the 

Mineral and Oil and Gas Rights Mandatory Disclosure Statement under the Residential Property Disclosure Act (Chapter 47E of 

North Carolina’s General Statutes) unless the Property is exempt. 

Tract off Laurie Ellis Road
Winterville 28590

Pitt

1
TBD TBD

Portion of PN 07032
1.648 acres

4561 301

108



Page 2 of 13 

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

(d) “Purchase Price”:

$ ____________________________ paid in U.S. Dollars upon the following terms: 

$ _______________________ BY DUE DILIGENCE FEE made payable and delivered to Seller on the Effective 

Date by  cash   personal check   official bank check   wire transfer  

 electronic transfer (specify payment service: ____________________________)

$ ____________________________ BY INITIAL EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT made payable and delivered to Escrow

Agent named in Paragraph 1(f) within five (5) days of the Effective Date of this

Contract by  cash   personal check   official bank check   wire transfer 

electronic transfer.

$ ____________________________ BY (ADDITIONAL) EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT made payable and delivered to

Escrow Agent named in Paragraph 1(f) no later than 5 p.m. on _________________,

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE by  cash  official bank check  wire transfer  

electronic transfer

$ ____________________________ BY ASSUMPTION of the unpaid principal balance and all obligations of Seller on the

existing loan(s) secured by a deed of trust on the Property in accordance with the

attached Loan Assumption Addendum (Standard Form 2A6-T).

$______________________________ BY SELLER FINANCING in accordance with the attached Seller Financing

Addendum (Standard Form 2A5-T).

$______________________________ BALANCE of the Purchase Price in cash at Settlement (some or all of which may be

paid with the proceeds of a new loan)

Should Buyer fail to deliver either the Due Diligence Fee or any Initial Earnest Money Deposit by their due dates, or should any 

check or other funds paid by Buyer be dishonored, for any reason, by the institution upon which the payment is drawn, Buyer shall 

have one (1) banking day after written notice to deliver cash, official bank check, wire transfer or electronic transfer to the payee. In 

the event Buyer does not timely deliver the required funds, Seller shall have the right to terminate this Contract upon written notice 

to Buyer, and Seller shall be entitled to recover the Due Diligence Fee together with all Earnest Money Deposit paid or to be paid in 

the future. In addition, Seller may seek any remedies allowed for dishonored funds.  See paragraph 20 for a party’s right to attorneys’ 

fees incurred in collecting the Earnest Money Deposit or Due Diligence Fee. 

(e) “Earnest Money Deposit”: The Initial Earnest Money Deposit, the Additional Earnest Money Deposit and any other earnest

monies paid or required to be paid in connection with this transaction, collectively the “Earnest Money Deposit”, shall be deposited

promptly and held in escrow by Escrow Agent. The Earnest Money Deposit will be credited to Buyer at Closing or disbursed as

required by this Contract.

(f) “Escrow Agent” (insert name): ____________________________________________________________________________

Buyer and Seller consent to disclosure by the Escrow Agent of any material facts pertaining to the Earnest Money Deposit to the 

parties to this transaction, their real estate agent(s) and Buyer’s lender(s). 

THE PARTIES AGREE THAT A REAL ESTATE BROKERAGE FIRM ACTING AS ESCROW AGENT MAY PLACE THE 

EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT IN AN INTEREST BEARING TRUST ACCOUNT AND THAT ANY INTEREST EARNED 

THEREON SHALL BE DISBURSED TO THE ESCROW AGENT MONTHLY IN CONSIDERATION OF THE EXPENSES 

INCURRED BY MAINTAINING SUCH ACCOUNT AND RECORDS ASSOCIATED THEREWITH.  

(g) “Effective Date”: The date that: (1) the last one of Buyer and Seller has signed or initialed this offer or the final counteroffer, if

any, and (2) such signing or initialing is communicated to the party making the offer or counteroffer, as the case may be. The parties

acknowledge and agree that the initials lines at the bottom of each page of this Contract are merely evidence of their having reviewed

the terms of each page, and that the complete execution of such initials lines shall not be a condition of the effectiveness of this

Agreement.

NOTE: In the event of a dispute between Seller and Buyer over the disposition of the Earnest Money Deposit held in escrow, a 

licensed real estate broker (“Broker”) is required by state law (and Escrow Agent, if not a Broker, hereby agrees) to retain the Earnest 

Money Deposit in the Escrow Agent’s trust or escrow account until Escrow Agent has obtained a written release from the parties 

consenting to its disposition or until disbursement is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. Alternatively, if a Broker or an 

attorney licensed to practice law in North Carolina ("Attorney") is holding the Earnest Money Deposit, the Broker or Attorney may 

deposit the disputed monies with the appropriate clerk of court in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. §93A-12. 

NOTE: If the parties agree that Buyer will pay any fee or deposit described above by electronic or wire transfer, Seller agrees to 

cooperate in effecting such transfer, including the establishment of any necessary account and providing any necessary 

information to Buyer, provided, however, Buyer shall be responsible for additional costs, if any, associated with such transfer. 

E. Keen Lassiter

65,920.00

0

0

0

0

64,920.00

1,000.00

109



Page 3 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

  

(h) “Due Diligence”: Buyer’s opportunity to investigate the Property and the transaction contemplated by this Contract, including 

but not necessarily limited to the matters described in Paragraph 2 below, to decide whether Buyer, in Buyer’s sole discretion, will 

proceed with or terminate the transaction. 

 

(i) “Due Diligence Fee”: A negotiated amount, if any, paid by Buyer to Seller with this Contract for Buyer’s right to terminate the 

Contract for any reason or no reason during the Due Diligence Period. It shall be the property of Seller upon the Effective Date and 

shall be a credit to Buyer at Closing. The Due Diligence Fee shall be non-refundable except in the event of a material breach of this 

Contract by Seller, or if this Contract is terminated under Paragraph 21(b) or as otherwise provided in any addendum hereto.  Buyer 

and Seller each expressly waive any right that they may have to deny the right to conduct Due Diligence or to assert any defense as 

to the enforceability of this Contract based on the absence or alleged insufficiency of any Due Diligence Fee, it being the intent of 

the parties to create a legally binding contract for the purchase and sale of the Property without regard to the existence or amount of 

any Due Diligence Fee. See paragraph 21 for a party’s right to attorneys’ fees incurred in collecting the Due Diligence Fee. 

 

(j) “Due Diligence Period”: (Check only one) 

 

 The period beginning on the Effective Date and extending through 5:00 p.m. on (insert date only; not “N/A”)________________ 

_________________________________________________________ 

 

OR 

 

 The period extending for (insert a number only; not “N/A”) ______________ days after the Effective Date and ending at 5:00 

p.m. on the last day of the period.  

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE FOR ANY DEADLINE IN THIS PARAGRAPH. 

 

(k) “Settlement”: The proper execution and delivery to the closing attorney of all documents necessary to complete the transaction 

contemplated by this Contract, including the deed, settlement statement, deed of trust and other loan or conveyance documents, and 

the closing attorney’s receipt of all funds necessary to complete such transaction 

 

(l) “Settlement Date”: The parties agree that Settlement will take place on __________________________________________ 

_______________________(the “Settlement Date”), unless otherwise agreed in writing, at a time and place designated by Buyer.  

 

 

(m) “Closing”: The completion of the legal process which results in the transfer of title to the Property from Seller to Buyer, which 

includes the following steps: (1) the Settlement (defined above); (2) the completion of a satisfactory title update to the Property 

following the Settlement; (3) the closing attorney’s receipt of authorization to disburse all necessary funds; and (4) recordation in 

the appropriate county registry of the deed(s) and deed(s) of trust, if any, which shall take place as soon as reasonably possible for 

the closing attorney after Settlement. Upon Closing, the proceeds of sale shall be disbursed by the closing attorney in accordance 

with the settlement statement and the provisions of Chapter 45A of the North Carolina General Statutes. If the title update should 

reveal unexpected liens, encumbrances or other title defects, or if the closing attorney is not authorized to disburse all necessary 

funds, then the Closing shall be suspended and the Settlement deemed delayed under Paragraph 10 (Delay in Settlement/Closing).  

(n) “Special Assessments”: A charge against the Property by a governmental authority in addition to ad valorem taxes and recurring 

governmental service fees levied with such taxes, or by an owners’ association in addition to any regular assessment (dues), either 

of which may be a lien against the Property.  

NOTE:  See paragraph 10, DELAY IN SETTLEMENT/CLOSING for conditions under which Settlement may be delayed.   

WARNING: The North Carolina State Bar has determined that the performance of most acts and services required for a closing 

constitutes the practice of law and must be performed only by an attorney licensed to practice law in North Carolina.  State law 

prohibits unlicensed individuals or firms from rendering legal services or advice.  Although non-attorney settlement agents may 

perform limited services in connection with a closing, they may not perform all the acts and services required to complete a 

closing.  A closing involves significant legal issues that should be handled by an attorney.  Accordingly it is the position of the 

North Carolina Bar Association and the North Carolina Association of REALTORS® that all buyers should hire an attorney 

licensed in North Carolina to perform a closing. 

NOTE: Buyer’s and Seller’s respective responsibilities for the payment of Special Assessments are addressed in paragraphs 4(a) 

and 6(l).  

 

April 1, 2025

on or before April 1, 2025

110



Page 4 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

2. BUYER’S DUE DILIGENCE PROCESS:  
(a) Loan: Buyer, at Buyer’s expense, shall be entitled to pursue qualification for and approval of the Loan if any. 

 

(b) Property Investigation: Buyer or Buyer’s agents or representatives, at Buyer’s expense, shall be entitled to conduct all desired 

tests, surveys, appraisals, investigations, examinations and inspections of the Property as Buyer deems appropriate, including but 

NOT limited to the following:   

 

(i)    Soil And Environmental: Reports to determine whether the soil is suitable for Buyer’s intended use and whether there is 

any environmental contamination, law, rule or regulation that may prohibit, restrict or limit Buyer’s intended use. 

(ii)  Septic/Sewer System: Any applicable investigation(s) to determine: (1) the condition of an existing sewage system, (2) 

the costs and expenses to install a sewage system approved by an existing Improvement Permit, (3) the availability and 

expense to connect to a public or community sewer system, and/or (4) whether an Improvement Permit or written 

evaluation may be obtained from the County Health Department for a suitable ground absorption sewage system. 

(iii)  Water: Any applicable investigation(s) to determine: (1) the condition of an existing private drinking water well, (2) the 

costs and expenses to install a private drinking water well approved by an existing Construction Permit, (3) the availability, 

costs and expenses to connect to a public or community water system, or a shared private well, and/or (4)  whether a 

Construction Permit may be obtained from the County Health Department for a private drinking water well. 

(iv)  Review of Documents: Review of the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation, Rules and 

Regulations, and other governing documents of any applicable owners’ association and/or subdivision. If the Property is 

subject to regulation by an owners’ association, it is recommended that Buyer review the completed Owners' Association 

And Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T) provided by Seller prior to signing this offer. It is also recommended that the 

Buyer determine if the owners’ association or its management company charges fees for providing information required 

by Buyer’s lender or confirming restrictive covenant compliance.  

(v)  Appraisals: An appraisal of the Property 

(vi)  Survey: A survey to determine whether the property is suitable for Buyer’s intended use and the location of easements, 

setbacks, property boundaries and other issues which may or may not constitute title defects.  

(vii) Zoning, Governmental Regulation, and Governmental Compliance: Investigation of current or proposed zoning          

or other governmental regulation that may affect Buyer’s intended use of the Property, adjacent land uses, planned or                 

proposed road construction, and school attendance zones; and investigation of whether the Property is in violation of             

any law, ordinance, permit, or government regulation as outlined in paragraph 6(h). 
 (viii)Flood/Wetland/Water Hazard: Investigation of potential flood hazards, wetlands, or other water or riparian issues on the 

Property; and/or any requirement to purchase flood insurance in order to obtain a loan. 

(ix) Utilities and Access: Availability, quality, and obligations for maintenance of utilities including electric, gas, 

communication services, storm water management, and means of access to the Property and amenities. 

(x) Streets/Roads: Investigation of the status of the street/road upon which the Property fronts as well as any other street/road 

used to access the Property, including: (1) whether any street(s)/road(s) are public or private, (2) whether any 

street(s)/road(s) designated as public are accepted for maintenance by the State of NC or any municipality, or (3) if private 

or not accepted for public maintenance, the consequences and responsibility for maintenance and the existence, terms and 

funding of any maintenance agreements. 

NOTE: NC General Statutes Section 136-102.6(f) (the "Statute") requires that under circumstances described in the Statute, 

a buyer must be provided a subdivision streets disclosure statement prior to entering into an agreement to buy subdivided 

property described in the Statute.  If Buyer or Seller are uncertain whether the sale of the Property described in this Contract 

is subject to the Statute, consult a NC real estate attorney. 

WARNING: BUYER IS STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CONDUCT DUE DILIGENCE DURING THE DUE DILIGENCE 

PERIOD. If Buyer is not satisfied with the results or progress of Buyer’s Due Diligence, Buyer should terminate this Contract, 

prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, unless Buyer can obtain a written extension from Seller. SELLER IS NOT 

OBLIGATED TO GRANT AN EXTENSION. Although Buyer may continue to investigate the Property following the expiration 

of the Due Diligence Period, Buyer’s failure to deliver a Termination Notice to Seller prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence 

Period will constitute a waiver by Buyer of any right to terminate this Contract based on any matter relating to Buyer’s Due 

Diligence. Provided however, following the Due Diligence Period, Buyer may still exercise a right to terminate if Seller fails to 

materially comply with any of Seller’s obligations under paragraph 6 of this Contract or for any other reason permitted under  the 

terms of this Contract or North Carolina law. 

NOTE: There is no loan or appraisal contingency in this Offer To Purchase and Contract. Therefore, Buyer is advised to consult 

with Buyer’s lender prior to signing this offer to assure that the Due Diligence Period allows sufficient time for the loan process 

and for Buyer’s lender to provide Buyer sufficient information to decide whether to proceed with or terminate the transaction. 

111



Page 5 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

   (xi) Special Assessments: Investigation of the existence of Special Assessments that may be under consideration by a  

          governmental authority or an owners’ association. 

 

(c) Sale/Lease of Existing Property: As noted in paragraph 3(b), this Contract is not conditioned upon the sale/lease or closing of 

other property owned by Buyer. Therefore, if Buyer must sell or lease other real property in order to qualify for a new loan or to 

otherwise complete the purchase of the Property, Buyer should seek to close on Buyer’s other property prior to the end of the Due 

Diligence Period or be reasonably satisfied that closing on Buyer's other property will take place prior to the Settlement Date of this 

Contract. 

 

(d) Buyer’s Obligation to Repair Damage: Buyer shall, at Buyer’s expense, promptly repair any damage to the Property resulting 

from any activities of Buyer and Buyer’s agents and contractors, but Buyer shall not be responsible for any damage caused by 

accepted practices applicable to any N.C. licensed professional performing reasonable appraisals, tests, surveys, examinations and 

inspections of the Property. This repair obligation shall survive any termination of this Contract. 

 

(e) Indemnity: Buyer will indemnify and hold Seller harmless from all loss, damage, claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of 

any contract, agreement, or injury to any person or property as a result of any activities of Buyer and Buyer’s agents and contractors 

relating to the Property except for any loss, damage, claim, suit or cost arising out of pre-existing conditions of the Property and/or 

out of Seller’s negligence or willful acts or omissions. This indemnity shall survive this Contract and any termination hereof.  

 

(f) Buyer’s Right to Terminate: Provided that Buyer has delivered any agreed-upon Due Diligence Fee, Buyer shall have the right 

to terminate this Contract for any reason or no reason, by delivering to Seller written notice of termination (the “Termination Notice”) 

during the Due Diligence Period (or any agreed-upon written extension of the Due Diligence Period), TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. 

If Buyer timely delivers the Termination Notice, this Contract shall be terminated and the Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded 

to Buyer.  

 

(g) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION 

UNLESS PROVISION IS OTHERWISE MADE IN WRITING. 

 

3. BUYER REPRESENTATIONS:  

     (a) Funds to complete purchase:  

   (Check if applicable) Cash. Buyer intends to pay cash in order to purchase the Property and does not intend to obtain a loan or 

funds from sources other than Buyer’s own assets. Verification of cash available for Settlement  is  is not attached. 

 OR: 

    (Check if applicable) Loan(s)/Other Funds: Buyer intends to obtain a loan(s) and/or other funds to purchase the Property from 

the following sources (check all applicable sources): 

   First Mortgage Loan:  

Buyer intends to obtain a first mortgage loan of the following type in order to purchase the Property:  Conventional  USDA 

 Other type: ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

in the principal amount of _______________________________________________________________________________. 

   Second Mortgage Loan:  

Buyer intends to obtain a second mortgage loan of the following type in order to purchase the Property: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   Other funds:  

Buyer intends to obtain funds from the following other source(s) in order to purchase the Property:  ____________________ 

  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(b) Other Property: Buyer  DOES  DOES NOT have to sell or lease other real property in order to qualify for a new loan or to 

complete the purchase. (Complete the following only if Buyer DOES have to sell or lease other real property:)  

NOTE: If Buyer does not intend to obtain a new loan(s) and/or funds from sources other than Buyer’s own assets, Seller is advised, 

prior to signing this offer, to obtain documentation from Buyer which demonstrates that Buyer will be able to close on the Property 

without the necessity of obtaining a loan or funds from sources other than Buyer’s own assets. 

NOTE: Buyer’s obligations under this Contract are not conditioned upon obtaining any loan(s) or other funds from sources other 

than Buyer’s own assets. Some mortgage loan programs and other programs providing funds for the purchase of property selected 

by Buyer may impose repair obligations and/or additional conditions or costs upon Seller or Buyer, and more information may be 

needed. 

Material changes with respect to funding the purchase of the Property that affect the terms of the contract are material facts that 

must be disclosed.  

 

112



Page 6 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

Other Property Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 (Check if applicable) Buyer's other property IS under contract as of the date of this offer, and a copy of the contract has either 

been previously provided to Seller or accompanies this offer. (Buyer may mark out any confidential information, such as the purchase 

price and the buyer’s identity, prior to providing a copy of the contract to Seller.) Failure to provide a copy of the contract shall not 

prevent this offer from becoming a binding contract; however, SELLER IS STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO OBTAIN AND 

REVIEW THE CONTRACT ON BUYER'S PROPERTY PRIOR TO ACCEPTING THIS OFFER. 

 

 (Check if applicable) Buyer’s other property IS NOT under contract as of the date of this offer.  Buyer’s property (check only 

ONE of the following options): 

     is listed with and actively marketed by a licensed real estate broker.        

    will be listed with and actively marketed by a licensed real estate broker.  

 Buyer is attempting to sell/lease the Buyer’s Property without the assistance of a licensed real estate broker. 

 (c) Performance of Buyer’s Financial Obligations: To the best of Buyer’s knowledge, there are no other circumstances or 

conditions existing as of the date of this offer that would prohibit Buyer from performing Buyer’s financial obligations in accordance 

with this Contract, except as may be specifically set forth herein.   

 

(d) Vacant Land Disclosure Statement (check only one): 

 Buyer has received a signed copy of the Vacant Land Disclosure Statement (Form 142) prior to making this offer. 

 Buyer has NOT received a signed copy of the Vacant Land Disclosure Statement (Form 142) prior to making this offer and shall 

have the right to terminate or withdraw this Contract without penalty (including a refund of any Due Diligence Fee) prior to the end 

of the third calendar day following the Effective Date. 

 

4. BUYER OBLIGATIONS:  

(a) Responsibility for Special Assessments: Buyer shall take title subject to all Special Assessments that may be approved following 

Settlement.  

 

(b) Responsibility for Certain Costs: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to:  

(i) any loan obtained by Buyer; 

(ii) charges by an owners’ association or a management company/vendor as agent of the association under paragraph 7(b) of 

this Contract;  

(iii) appraisal; 

(iv)  title search;  

(v) title insurance;  

(vi) any fees charged by the closing attorney for the preparation of the Closing Disclosure, Seller Disclosure and any other 

settlement statement;  

(vii) recording the deed; and  

(viii) preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure the balance of the Purchase Price unpaid at Settlement. 

 

(c) Authorization to Disclose Information: Buyer authorizes the Buyer’s lender(s), the parties’ real estate agent(s) and closing 

attorney: (1) to provide this Contract to any appraiser employed by Buyer or by Buyer’s lender(s); and (2) to release and disclose 

any buyer’s closing disclosure, settlement statement and/or disbursement summary, or any information therein, to the parties to this 

transaction, their real estate agent(s) and Buyer’s lender(s). 

 

5. SELLER REPRESENTATIONS: 

(a) Ownership: Seller represents that Seller: 

 has owned the Property for at least one year. 

 has owned the Property for less than one year. 

 does not yet own the Property. 

 

(b) Owners’ Association(s) and Dues: To best of Seller’s knowledge, ownership of the Property  subjects  does not subject 

Buyer to regulation by one or more owners’ association(s) and governing documents, which impose various mandatory covenants, 

conditions and restrictions upon the Property and Buyer’s enjoyment thereof, including but not limited to obligations to pay regular 

assessments (dues) and Special Assessments. If there is an owners’ association, then an Owners’ Association Disclosure and 

Addendum For Properties Exempt from Residential Property Disclosure Statement (Standard Form 2A12-T) shall be completed by 

Seller, at Seller’s expense, and must be attached as an addendum to this Contract.  

NOTE: This Contract is NOT conditioned upon the sale/lease or closing of Buyer’s other property. If the parties agree to make 

this Contract conditioned on a sale/lease or closing of Buyer's other property, an appropriate contingency addendum should be 

drafted by a North Carolina real estate attorney and added to this Contract. 

113



Page 7 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

(c) Sewage System Permit: ( Applicable  Not Applicable) Seller warrants that the sewage system described in the Improvement 

Permit attached hereto has been installed, which representation survives Closing, but makes no further representations as to the 

system.  

 

(d) Private Drinking Water Well Permit: ( Applicable  Not Applicable)  Seller warrants that a private drinking water well has 

been installed, which representation survives Closing, but makes no further representations as to the well. (If well installed after July 

1, 2008, attach Improvement Permit hereto. 

 

6. SELLER OBLIGATIONS: 

(a) Evidence of Title, Payoff Statement(s) and Non Foreign Status:  

(i) Seller agrees to use best efforts to provide to the closing attorney as soon as reasonably possible after the Effective Date, 

copies of all title information in possession of or available to Seller, including but not limited to: title insurance policies, 

attorney’s opinions on title, surveys, covenants, deeds, notes and deeds of trust, leases, and easements relating to the 

Property.  

(ii) Seller shall provide to the closing attorney all information needed to obtain a written payoff statement from any lender(s) 

regarding any security interest in the Property as soon as reasonably possible after the Effective Date, and Seller designates 

the closing attorney as Seller’s agent with express authority to request and obtain on Seller’s behalf payoff statements and/or 

short-pay statements from any such lender(s). 

(iii) If Seller is not a foreign person as defined by the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act, Seller shall also provide 

to the closing attorney a non-foreign status certification (pursuant to the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act). In the 

event Seller does not provide a non-foreign status certification, Seller acknowledges that there may be withholding as 

provided by the Internal Revenue Code. 

 

(b) Authorization to Disclose Information: Seller authorizes: (1) any attorney presently or previously representing Seller to release 

and disclose any title insurance policy in such attorney's file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys;  (2) the 

Property’s title insurer or its agent to release and disclose all materials in the Property's title insurer's (or title insurer's agent's) file to 

Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys, and (3) the closing attorney to release and disclose any seller’s closing 

disclosure, settlement statement and/or disbursement summary, or any information therein, to the parties to this transaction, their real 

estate agent(s) and Buyer’s lender(s).  

 

(c) Access to Property: Seller shall provide reasonable access to the Property through the earlier of Closing or possession by Buyer, 

including, but not limited to, allowing the Buyer and/or Buyer’s agents or representatives an opportunity to (i) conduct Due Diligence, 

(ii) verify the satisfactory completion of negotiated repairs/improvements, and (iii) conduct a final walk-through inspection of the 

Property.  Seller’s obligation includes providing existing utilities operating at Seller’s cost including any connections and de-

winterizing. To the extent applicable, Seller shall also be responsible for timely clearing that portion of the Property required by the 

County to perform tests, inspections and/or evaluations to determine the suitability of the Property for a sewage system and/or private 

drinking water well.  

 (d) Removal of Seller’s Property: Seller shall remove from the Property, by the date possession is delivered, (i) all personal property 

which is not a part of the purchase and (ii) unless otherwise agreed, all garbage and debris.  

 

(e) Affidavit And Indemnification Agreement: Seller shall furnish at Settlement an affidavit(s) and indemnification agreement(s) 

in form satisfactory to Buyer and Buyer’s title insurer, if any, executed by Seller and any person or entity who has performed or 

furnished labor, services, materials or rental equipment to the Property within 120 days prior to the date of Settlement and who may 

be entitled to claim a lien against the Property as described in N.C.G.S. §44A-8 verifying that each such person or entity has been 

paid in full and agreeing to indemnify Buyer, Buyer’s lender(s) and Buyer’s title insurer against all loss from any cause or claim 

arising therefrom. 

 

(f) Designation of Lien Agent, Payment and Satisfaction of Liens: If required by N.C.G.S. §44A-11.1, Seller shall have designated 

a Lien Agent, and Seller shall deliver to Buyer as soon as reasonably possible a copy of the appointment of Lien Agent. All deeds of 

trust, deferred ad valorem taxes, liens and other charges against the Property, not assumed by Buyer, must be paid and satisfied by 

Seller prior to or at Settlement such that cancellation may be promptly obtained following Closing. Seller shall remain obligated to 

obtain any such cancellations following Closing.  

 

NOTE: See WARNING in paragraph 2 above for limitation on Buyer’s right to terminate this Contract as a result of Buyer’s 

continued investigation of the Property following the expiration of the Due Diligence Period. 

114



Page 8 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

(g) Good Title, Legal Access: Seller shall execute and deliver a GENERAL WARRANTY DEED for the Property in recordable 

form no later than Settlement, which shall convey fee simple marketable and insurable title, without exception for mechanics’ liens, 

lis pendens, monetary liens and judgments, and free of other encumbrances or defects that would materially affect the value of the 

Property, including those which would be revealed by a current and accurate survey of the Property, except: (1) ad valorem taxes 

for the current year; (2) utility easements and unviolated covenants, conditions or restrictions;  and (3) such other liens, encumbrances 

or defects as may be specifically approved by Buyer in writing. The Property must have legal access to a public right of way.  

 

(h) Governmental Compliance: It is a condition of this Contract that the Property be conveyed free of any material violation of 

law, ordinance, permit, or government regulation (including, but not limited to, those relating to stormwater, impervious surface, 

environmental protection, and zoning), unless Seller has specifically disclosed such violation(s) prior to the Effective Date. If a 

violation is discovered and identified after the Effective Date and prior to Closing, then Seller may cure the violation(s). Unless 

otherwise agreed, if Seller does not cure the violation(s) prior to Closing, then Buyer may choose to accept the violation(s) and 

proceed to Settlement/Closing or terminate this Contract and receive a refund of the Earnest Money Deposit and the Due Diligence 

Fee. 

 

 (i) Deed, Taxes and Fees: Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller’s obligations 

under this Contract, and for state and county excise taxes, and any deferred, discounted or rollback taxes, and local conveyance fees 

required by law.  The deed is to be made (a) Buyer; (b) a corporation, limited liability company, or other business entity of which       

Buyer is the sole owner or shareholder; (c) a trust for which Buyer is the beneficiary; (d) any relative of Buyer; and/or (e)  Other: 

(Insert Name(s) Only) ______________________. 

 

(j) Agreement to Pay Buyer Expenses: Seller shall pay at Settlement $________________________ toward any of Buyer’s 

expenses associated with the purchase of the Property, at the discretion of Buyer and/or lender, if any, including any FHA/VA lender 

and inspection costs that Buyer is not permitted to pay.  

 

 

(k) Owners’ Association Fees/Charges: Seller shall pay any charges by an owners’ association or a management company/vendor 

as agent of the association under paragraph 7(a) of this Contract.  

 

(l) Payment of Special Assessments: Seller shall pay, in full at Settlement, all Special Assessments that are approved prior to 

Settlement, whether payable in a lump sum or future installments, provided that the amount thereof can be reasonably determined or 

estimated.  The payment of such estimated amount shall be the final payment between the Parties.  

 

(m) Late Listing Penalties: All property tax late listing penalties, if any, shall be paid by Seller.  

 

(n) Owners’ Association Disclosure and Condominium Resale Statement Addendum (Standard Form 2A12-T): If applicable, 

Seller shall provide the completed Owners’ Association Disclosure and Condominium Resale Statement Addendum to Buyer on or 

before the Effective Date. 

 

(o) Seller’s Breach of Contract: See paragraph 21 for Buyer’s remedies in the event of breach of this Contract.  

 

7. CHARGES BY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION: Responsibility for payment of charges by an owners’ association or a management 

company/vendor as agent of the association shall be allocated between Buyer and Seller as follows:  

 (a) Seller shall pay: 

(i) fees incurred by Seller in completing resale or other certificates related to a proposed sale of the Property; 

(ii) fees required for confirming Seller’s account payment information on owners’ association dues or assessments for payment 

or proration, including any expedite fee permitted under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 47F-3-102 that is charged in connection with providing 

such information; 

(iii) any fees charged for transferring or updating ownership records of the association; and 

(iv) any fees other than those fees specifically required to be paid by Buyer under paragraph 7(b) below. 

 

NOTE: Buyer’s failure to conduct a survey or examine title of the Property prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period 

does not relieve the Seller of their obligation to deliver good title under this paragraph. 

 

NOTE: If any sale of the Property may be a “short sale,” consideration should be given to attaching a Short Sale Addendum 

(Standard Form 2A14-T) as an addendum to this Contract. 

Town of Winterville

-0-

115



Page 9 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

 (b) Buyer shall pay:  

(i) charges for providing information required by Buyer’s lender; 

(ii)  working capital contributions, membership fees, or charges imposed for Buyer’s use of the common elements and/or 

services provided to Buyer in connection with Buyer taking possession of the Property, such as “move-in fees”; and  

(iii) determining restrictive covenant compliance. 

 

8. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS: Unless otherwise agreed, the following items shall be prorated, with Seller responsible 

for the prorated amounts of any taxes and dues through the date of Settlement, and Seller entitled to the amount of prorated rents 

through the date of Settlement, and either adjusted between the parties or paid at Settlement:   

 (a) Taxes on Real Property: Ad valorem taxes and recurring governmental service fees levied with such taxes on real property shall 

 be prorated on a calendar year basis; 

(b) Rents: Rents, if any, for the Property;  

(c) Dues: Owners’ association regular assessments (dues) and other like charges.  

 

9. CONDITION OF PROPERTY/RISK OF LOSS: 

 (a)  Condition of Property at Closing: If the Property is not in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date 

of this offer, reasonable wear and tear excepted, Buyer may terminate this Contract by written notice delivered to Seller and the Due 

Diligence Fee and Earnest Money Deposit shall be refunded to Buyer. If the Property is not in such condition and Buyer does NOT elect 

to terminate this Contract, Buyer shall be entitled to receive, in addition to the Property, the proceeds of any insurance claim filed by 

Seller on account of any damage or destruction to the Property. 

 
 (b)   Risk of Loss: The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. Seller is advised not to 

cancel existing insurance on the Property until after confirming recordation of the deed.  

 

10. DELAY IN SETTLEMENT/CLOSING: This paragraph shall apply if one party is ready, willing and able to complete Settlement 

on the Settlement Date (“Non-Delaying Party”) but it is not possible for the other party to complete Settlement by the Settlement Date 

(“Delaying Party”). In such event, the Delaying Party shall be entitled to a delay in Settlement and shall give as much notice as possible 

to the Non-Delaying Party and closing attorney. If the Delaying Party fails to complete Settlement and Closing within seven (7) days of 

the Settlement Date (including any amended Settlement Date agreed to in writing by the parties), then the Delaying Party shall be in 

breach and the Non-Delaying Party may terminate this Contract and shall be entitled to enforce any remedies available to such party 

under this Contract for the breach. 

 

11. POSSESSION:  Unless otherwise provided herein, possession, including all means of access to the Property and transferable 

amenities and services (keys, including mailbox keys, codes including security codes, gate openers, electronic devices, etc.) shall be 

delivered at Closing as defined in Paragraph 1(m). No alterations, excavations, tree or vegetation removal or other such activities may 

be done before possession is delivered 

 

12. ADDENDA: CHECK ALL STANDARD ADDENDA THAT MAY BE A PART OF THIS CONTRACT, IF ANY, AND ATTACH 

HERETO. ITEMIZE ALL OTHER ADDENDA TO THIS CONTRACT, IF ANY, AND ATTACH HERETO.  

 

 Additional Provisions Addendum (Form 2A11-T)  Owners' Association Disclosure Addendum  

    (Form 2A12-T)  Additional Signatures Addendum (Form 3-T) 

 Back-Up Contract Addendum (Form 2A1-T)  Seller Financing Addendum (Form 2A5-T) 

 Loan Assumption Addendum (Form 2A6-T)  Short Sale Addendum (Form 2A14-T)  

 

 Identify other attorney or party drafted addenda: ___________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

13. ASSIGNMENTS: This Contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties except in connection with a tax- 

deferred exchange, but if assigned by agreement, then this Contract shall be binding on the assignee and assignee’s heirs and successors. 

 

14. TAX-DEFERRED EXCHANGE: In the event Buyer or Seller desires to effect a tax-deferred exchange in connection with the 

conveyance of the Property, Buyer and Seller agree to cooperate in effecting such exchange; provided, however, that the exchanging 

party shall be responsible for all additional costs associated with such exchange, and provided further, that a non-exchanging party shall 

not assume any additional liability with respect to such tax-deferred exchange. Buyer and Seller shall execute such additional documents, 

including assignment of this Contract in connection therewith, at no cost to the non-exchanging party, as shall be required to give effect 

to this provision.  

NOTE: UNDER NORTH CAROLINA LAW, REAL ESTATE BROKERS ARE NOT PERMITTED TO DRAFT ADDENDA 

TO THIS CONTRACT. 

Form 142 - Vacant Land Disclosure Statement

116



Page 10 of 13 

   

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

 

15. PARTIES: This Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Buyer and Seller and their respective heirs, 

successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter 

genders, as appropriate.  

 

16. SURVIVAL: If any provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to be observed, kept or performed after 

the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or 

performed. 

 

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/RECORDATION: This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no 

representations, inducements or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions or deletions hereto must be 

in writing and signed by all parties. Nothing contained herein shall alter any agreement between a REALTOR® or broker and Seller or 

Buyer as contained in any listing agreement, buyer agency agreement, or any other agency agreement between them. This Agreement 

or any memorandum thereof shall not be recorded without the express written consent of Buyer and Seller.  

 

18. CONDUCT OF TRANSACTION: The parties agree that any action between them relating to the transaction contemplated by this 

Contract may be conducted by electronic means, including the signing of this Contract by one or more of them and any notice or 

communication given in connection with this Contract. Any written notice or communication may be transmitted to any mailing address, 

e-mail address or fax number set forth in the “Notice Information” section below. Any notice or communication to be given to a party 

herein, any fee, deposit of other payment to be delivered to a party herein, may be given to the party or to such party’s agent. Delivery 

of any notice to a party via means of electronic transmission shall be deemed complete at such time as the sender performs the final act 

to send such transmission, in a form capable of being processed by the receiving party’s system, to any electronic address provided for 

such party in the “Notice Information” section below. Seller and Buyer agree that the “Notice Information” and “Acknowledgment of 

Receipt of Monies” sections below shall not constitute a material part of this Contract, and that the addition or modification of any 

information therein shall not constitute a rejection of an offer or the creation of a counteroffer.  

 

19. EXECUTION: This Contract may be signed in multiple originals or counterparts, all of which together constitute one and the same 

instrument.  

 

20. COMPUTATION OF DAYS/TIME OF DAY:   Unless otherwise provided, for purposes of this Contract, the term “days” shall  

mean consecutive calendar days, including Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, whether federal, state, local or religious. For the purposes 

of calculating days, the count of “days” shall begin on the day following the day upon which any act or notice as provided in this Contract 

was required to be performed or made.   Any reference to a date or time of day shall refer to the date and/or time of day in the State of 

North Carolina. 

 

21.  REMEDIES: 

(a) Breach by Buyer: In the event of material breach of this Contract by Buyer, any Earnest Money Deposit shall be paid to Seller. The 

payment of any Earnest Money Deposit and any Due Diligence Fee to Seller (without regard to their respective amounts, including zero) 

together shall serve as liquidated damages (“Liquidated Damages”) and as Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy for such breach, provided 

that such Liquidated Damages shall not limit Seller’s rights under Paragraphs 2(d) and 2(e) for damage to the Property as well as Seller’s 

right under paragraph 1(d) for dishonored funds. It is acknowledged by the parties that the amount of the Liquidated Damages is 

compensatory and not punitive, such amount being a reasonable estimation of the actual loss that Seller would incur as a result of a 

breach of this Contract by Buyer. The payment to Seller of the Liquidated Damages shall not constitute a penalty or forfeiture but actual 

compensation for Seller's anticipated loss, both parties acknowledging the difficulty determining Seller’s actual damages for such breach. 

 

(b) Breach by Seller: In the event of material breach of this Contract by Seller, Buyer may (i) elect to terminate this Contract as a result 

of such breach, and shall be entitled to return of both the Earnest Money Deposit and the Due Diligence Fee, together with the reasonable 

costs actually incurred by Buyer in connection with Buyer’s Due Diligence (“Due Diligence Costs”), or (ii) elect not to terminate and 

instead treat this Contract as remaining in full force and effect and seek the remedy of specific performance.  

 

(c) Attorneys’ Fees: If legal proceedings are brought by Buyer or Seller against the other to collect the Earnest Money Deposit, Due 

Diligence Fee, or Due Diligence Costs, the parties agree that a party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent 

permitted under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 6-21.2, and if applicable, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 6-21.3 for dishonored funds. The parties acknowledge and 

agree that the terms of this Contract with respect to entitlement to the Earnest Money Deposit, Due Diligence Fee, or Due Diligence 

Costs each constitute an "evidence of indebtedness" pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 6-21.2.

NOTE: A party seeking recovery of attorneys’ fees under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 6-21.2 must first give written notice to the other party 

that they have five (5) days from the mailing of the notice to pay the outstanding amount(s) without the attorneys’ fees.  

117



Page 11 of 13 

    STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

 

THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. AND THE NORTH CAROLINA BAR ASSOCIATION MAKE 

NO REPRESENTATION AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS FORM IN ANY 

SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. IF YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THIS FORM OR FEEL IT DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR YOUR 

LEGAL NEEDS, YOU SHOULD CONSULT A NORTH CAROLINA REAL ESTATE ATTORNEY BEFORE YOU SIGN IT. 

 

This offer shall become a binding contract on the Effective Date. Unless specifically provided otherwise, Buyer’s failure to timely 

deliver any fee, deposit or other payment provided for herein shall not prevent this offer from becoming a binding contract, 

provided that any such failure shall give Seller certain rights to terminate the contract as described herein or as otherwise 

permitted by law. 

 

Date: _____________________________________________  Date: _____________________________________________ 

 

Buyer:____________________________________________  Seller :____________________________________________ 

 

Date:_____________________________________________  Date: _____________________________________________ 

 

Buyer:____________________________________________  Seller:_____________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________  __________________________________________________ 

 

Entity Buyer:       Entity Seller: 

_________________________________________________  __________________________________________________ 

 (Name of LLC/Corporation/Partnership/Trust/etc.)   (Name of LLC/Corporation/Partnership/Trust/etc.) 

 

By: ______________________________________________  By:  ______________________________________________ 

 

Name: ___________________________________________  Name: ____________________________________________ 

    Print Name       Print Name 

Title: ____________________________________________  Title: _____________________________________________ 

 

Date:_____________________________________________  Date: _____________________________________________ 

 

 

WIRE FRAUD WARNING 

 

 

 

 

TO BUYERS:  BEFORE SENDING ANY WIRE, YOU SHOULD CALL THE CLOSING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO VERIFY 

THE INSTRUCTIONS.  IF YOU RECEIVE WIRING INSTRUCTIONS FOR A DIFFERENT BANK, BRANCH   LOCATION, 

ACCOUNT NAME OR ACCOUNT NUMBER, THEY SHOULD BE PRESUMED FRAUDULENT.  DO NOT SEND ANY 

FUNDS AND CONTACT THE CLOSING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE IMMEDIATELY. 

 

TO SELLERS: IF YOUR PROCEEDS WILL BE WIRED, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOU PROVIDE WIRING 

INSTRUCTIONS AT CLOSING IN WRITING IN THE PRESENCE OF THE ATTORNEY.  IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO 

ATTEND CLOSING, YOU MAY BE REQUIRED TO SEND AN ORIGINAL NOTARIZED DIRECTIVE TO THE CLOSING 

ATTORNEY’S OFFICE CONTAINING THE WIRING INSTRUCTIONS.  THIS MAY BE SENT WITH THE DEED, LIEN 

WAIVER AND TAX FORMS IF THOSE DOCUMENTS ARE BEING PREPARED FOR YOU BY THE CLOSING 

ATTORNEY.  AT A MINIMUM, YOU SHOULD CALL THE CLOSING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO PROVIDE THE WIRE 

INSTRUCTIONS.  THE WIRE INSTRUCTIONS SHOULD BE VERIFIED OVER THE TELEPHONE VIA A CALL TO YOU 

INITIATED BY THE CLOSING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO ENSURE THAT THEY ARE NOT FROM A FRAUDULENT 

SOURCE. 

    

WHETHER YOU ARE A BUYER OR A SELLER, YOU SHOULD CALL THE CLOSING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE AT A 

NUMBER THAT IS INDEPENDENTLY OBTAINED.  TO ENSURE THAT YOUR CONTACT IS LEGITIMATE, YOU 

SHOULD NOT RELY ON A PHONE NUMBER IN AN EMAIL FROM THE CLOSING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, YOUR REAL 

ESTATE AGENT OR ANYONE ELSE. 

Laurie Howard Ellis, Jr. Exempt Decedent's Trust under the Laurie Howard Ellis, Jr. Trust
dated May 19, 2015

Pedro Balderas Ellis

Trustee

Town of Winterville

Richard E. Hines

Mayor

118



Page 12 of 13 

   

 

Buyer initials _______ _______ Seller initials _______ _______ 

 STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

NOTICE INFORMATION 

NOTE: INSERT AT LEAST ONE ADDRESS AND/OR ELECTRONIC DELIVERY ADDRESS EACH PARTY AND AGENT 

APPROVES FOR THE RECEIPT OF ANY NOTICE CONTEMPLATED BY THIS CONTRACT. INSERT “N/A” FOR ANY WHICH 

ARE NOT APPROVED. 

BUYER NOTICE ADDRESS: 

 

Mailing Address: ____________________________________  

 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Buyer Fax #: ________________________________________ 

 

Buyer E-mail:_______________________________________ 

SELLER NOTICE ADDRESS: 

 

Mailing Address: _____________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Seller Fax #:_________________________________________ 

 

Seller E-mail:________________________________________ 

 

 

CONFIRMATION OF AGENCY/NOTICE ADDRESSES 

Selling Firm Name: ___________________________________ 

Acting as  Buyer’s Agent  Seller’s (sub)Agent  Dual 

Agent   

 

Firm License#: ______________________________________ 

 

Mailing Address:_____________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Individual Selling Agent:_______________________________ 

 Acting as a Designated Dual Agent (check only if applicable) 

 

Selling Agent License#: _______________________________ 

 

Selling Agent Phone#: ________________________________ 

 

Selling Agent Fax#: __________________________________ 

 

Selling Agent E-mail: _________________________________ 

 

Listing Firm Name:___________________________________ 

Acting as  Seller’s Agent  Dual Agent   

 

Firm License#:_______________________________________ 

 

Mailing Address:  ____________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Individual Listing Agent:_______________________________ 

 Acting as a Designated Dual Agent (check only if applicable) 

 

Listing Agent License#:________________________________ 

 

Listing Agent Phone#:_________________________________ 

 

Listing Agent Fax#:___________________________________ 

 

Listing Agent E-mail:__________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

119



Page 13 of 13 

    STANDARD FORM 12-T 

Revised 7/2024 

© 7/2024 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF MONIES 

 

Seller:______________________________________________________________________________________________(“Seller”)  

 

Buyer:_____________________________________________________________________________________________(“Buyer”) 

 

Property Address:___________________________________________________________________________________(“Property”)  

 

 LISTING AGENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF DUE DILIGENCE FEE 

 

Paragraph 1(d) of the Offer to Purchase and Contract between Buyer and Seller for the sale of the Property provides for the payment to 

Seller of a Due Diligence Fee in the amount of $________________, receipt of which Listing Agent hereby acknowledges.   

 

Date_____________________________________    Firm:____________________________________________________ 

 

By:______________________________________________________ 

         (Signature) 

      _________________________________________________________ 

   (Print name) 

 

 SELLER ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF DUE DILIGENCE FEE 

 

Paragraph 1(d) of the Offer to Purchase and Contract between Buyer and Seller for the sale of the Property provides for the payment to 

Seller of a Due Diligence Fee in the amount of $________________, receipt of which Seller hereby acknowledges.   

 

Date:___________________________________  Seller: __________________________________________________ 

   (Signature) 

 

Date:___________________________________  Seller: __________________________________________________ 

   (Signature) 

 

 ESCROW AGENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF INITIAL EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT  

 

Paragraph 1(d) of the Offer to Purchase and Contract between Buyer and Seller for the sale of the Property provides for the payment to 

Escrow Agent of an Initial Earnest Money Deposit in the amount of $_______________.  Escrow Agent as identified in Paragraph 1(f) 

of the Offer to Purchase and Contract hereby acknowledges receipt of the Initial Earnest Money Deposit and agrees to hold and disburse 

the same in accordance with the terms of the Offer to Purchase and Contract. 

 

Date:___________________________________   Firm: ____________________________________________________ 

 

By:______________________________________________________ 

         (Signature) 

      _________________________________________________________ 

   (Print name) 

  

 ESCROW AGENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF (ADDITIONAL) EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT  

 

Paragraph 1(d) of the Offer to Purchase and Contract between Buyer and Seller for the sale of the Property provides for the payment to 

Escrow Agent of an (Additional) Earnest Money Deposit in the amount of $_______________.  Escrow Agent as identified in Paragraph 

1(f) of the Offer to Purchase and Contract hereby acknowledges receipt of the (Additional) Earnest Money Deposit and agrees to hold 

and disburse the same in accordance with the terms of the Offer to Purchase and Contract. 

 

Date:_______________________________________   Firm: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Time: ____________________ AM    PM  By:______________________________________________________ 

         (Signature) 

      _________________________________________________________ 

                               (Print name) 

Pedro Balderas Ellis, Trustee of the Laurie Howard Ellis Trust under the Lauire Howard Ellis, Jr. Trust dated May 19, 2015

Town of Winterville

Tract off Laurie Ellis Road, Winterville, NC 28590

120



121



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager and Keen Lassiter, Town 
Attorney 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Subordination Agreement – Christ Covenant School. 

Action Requested: Approval of Subordination Agreement. 

Attachment: Amended Subordination Agreement. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager and Keen Lassiter, 
Town Attorney 

Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 1/24/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Christ Covenant School is building an expansion to the School and will be executing a new loan to facilitate 

the construction. The Council will need to approve the Subordination of the Loan that the Town has with 

Christ Covenant so that they can move forward with their new loan. The loan will be subordinated to First 

Bank. 

Town Attorney Lassiter has reviewed in accordance with direction from Council. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve amended Subordination Agreement. 

 

122



 

  
200667758.2 

200774781.1 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by and Return to:                

Maynard Nexsen PC 

800 Green Valley Road, Suite 500 

Greensboro, NC 27408 

 

         

SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF PITT 

 

 THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT (“Subordination Agreement”) made and 

entered into as of the ____ day of January, 2025, by the TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, a North 

Carolina municipality (the “Town”) and is made to and for the benefit of FIRST BANK 

(“First Bank”).  

 

WIT N E SSE T H:  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town is the holder of that certain Promissory Note in the amount of 

$85,000.00 (the “Town Note”) from Christ Covenant School, a North Carolina non-profit 

corporation (“Borrower”) which Note is secured by that certain North Carolina Deed of Trust 

from Borrower for the benefit of the Town dated January 13, 2016 and recorded February 3, 

2016, in Book 3403, Page 780, in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Pitt County (the 

“Town Mortgage” and collectively with the Town Note, the “Town Loan”), which covers 

that real property and improvements located at 746 Worthington Rd., Winterville, Pitt County, 

North Carolina, which real property is described in the Town Mortgage as the “Premises” 

(“Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, on or about the date hereof, Borrower is entering into a new loan with 

First Bank, as lender, in the original principal amount of $5,300,000.00 which loan is 

evidenced a Promissory Note (the “First Bank Note”) which First Bank Note will be secured 

by that certain Construction Deed of Trust Securing Future Advances from Borrower to Kirsten 

E. Foyles, Trustee for the benefit of First Bank dated January 16, 2025, and recorded on 

January ___, 2025, in Book ____ Page ____, in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Pitt 

County (the “First Bank Mortgage” and collectively with the First Bank Note, the “First 

Bank Loan”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, as a condition to making the First Bank Loan, First Bank requires 

Borrower and the Town to enter into this Subordination Agreement for the purpose of clearly 

establishing that the First Bank Loan shall be superior to the Town Loan irrespective of the 

dates of execution, delivery or recording of the Town Loan; and 

123



 

  
200667758.2 

200774781.1 

2 

 

WHEREAS, the Town has agreed to subordinate the lien of the Town Mortgage to the 

lien of the First Bank Mortgage. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable 

consideration and the mutual covenants herein contained, passing among the parties hereto, 

the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The statements set forth in the recitals of this Subordination 

Agreement are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

 

2. Subordination of Town Loan to First Bank Loan. All right, title and interest of the 

Town in and to the Property and all privileges, hereditaments, easements and 

appurtenances, all rents, leases, issues and profits, all awards and payments made as 

the result of the exercise of the right of eminent domain and all existing and future 

improvements, if any, granted to the Town under the Town Loan and Town Mortgage 

shall be and hereby are made subordinate, junior and inferior and postponed in priority, 

operation and effect to the First Bank Loan including without limitation the First Bank 

Mortgage, irrespective of the dates of execution, delivery or recording of any of them. 

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 
 

(a) The Town hereby subordinates the Town Mortgage and its lien position 

and security interest in and on the Property to the First Bank Mortgage and its lien 

position and security interest in and on the Property, as if the First Bank Mortgage had 

been recorded prior in time to the Town Mortgage, and to the end that the First Bank 

Mortgage shall be superior to the Town Mortgage. This priority shall apply regardless 

of the perfection, non-perfection, cessation of perfection or order of perfection of the 

parties’ respective interests.  The Town hereby acknowledges and agrees that the First 

Bank Mortgage is and shall constitute a first, prior and superior lien on and against the 

Property, and the Town Mortgage is and shall be subject, subordinate and inferior to 

the First Bank Mortgage. 

 

(b) The Town further agrees that at any time and from time to time First 

Bank may make advances, renewals and extensions of the First Bank Loan or any part 

thereof and may otherwise deal therewith in any manner First Bank may determine in 

its sole discretion without notice to the Town Mortgage trustee, or the Town.  

 

(c) Except for the subordination set forth herein, the Town Mortgage shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

3. Notice of Default. The Town agrees that it will provide First Bank written notice of the 

occurrence of default by Borrower under the Town Loan, which notice shall be sent no 

later than 15 days after the Town has determined that a default has occurred. The Town 

agrees not to foreclose on the Property or accept a deed in lieu of foreclosure without 

first providing no less than 60 days prior written notice to First Bank and an opportunity 

for First Bank to cure any default. The foregoing limitation shall be solely for the 

124



 

  
200667758.2 

200774781.1 

3 

benefit of First Bank and shall not be construed to provide Borrower with any additional 

notice or grace period. 

 

4. Severability.  If any term of this Subordination Agreement or any obligation thereunder 

shall be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Subordination 

Agreement and any other application of such term shall not be affected thereby. 

 

5. Binding Agreement. This Subordination Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall 

inure to the benefit of, each of the parties hereto and their respective successors and 

assigns. 

 

6. Miscellaneous. As used herein, the singular number shall include the plural, the plural 

the singular, and the use of the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender shall include all 

genders, as the context may require, and the term “person” shall include an individual, 

a corporation, an association, a partnership, a trust, and an organization. The paragraph 

headings of this Subordination Agreement are for convenience only and shall not limit 

or otherwise affect any of the terms hereof. 

 

7. Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be 

in writing, shall be effective upon receipt, and shall be delivered by hand, or mailed by 

registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, first class postage prepaid, Federal 

Express or other reputable overnight courier service, and in each case, addressed to 

First Bank, Borrower and/or the Town using the addresses provided for in the First 

Bank Mortgage and Town Mortgage, respectively. A courtesy copy for notices to First 

Bank shall be provided to: 

 

  Maynard Nexsen PC  

  c/o Erin Cowan Mosley 

  800 Green Valley Rd., Suite 500 

  Greensboro, NC 27408 
 

8. Entire Agreement.  This   Subordination   Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between First Bank and the Town with respect to the matters set forth herein, and any 

term or condition not expressed in this Subordination Agreement does not constitute a 

part of the agreement of the parties with respect to such matters. 

 

9. Governing Law; Venue.  This Subordination Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina and shall be 

deemed to be executed, delivered, and accepted in the State of North Carolina. Venue 

for any action brought under this Subordination Agreement shall be in any state court 

in Pitt County, North Carolina, having jurisdiction over the subject matter. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has hereto set its hand and seal as of the day and 

year first above written. 

 

      TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

125



 

  
200667758.2 

200774781.1 

4 

 

      _______________________ (SEAL) 

      Richard E. Hines, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

__________, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  ) 

  ) 

COUNTY OF _________  ) 

 

I, a Notary Public certify that __________ personally came before me this day and 

acknowledged that he/she is Town Clerk of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina and that 

by authority duly given and as the act of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina the foregoing 

instrument was signed in its name by its Mayor, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by 

her/him as the Town Clerk. 

 

Witness my hand and official seal, this the ____ day of January, 2025. 

 

        

_____________________________ 

Notary Public         

My commission expires: _____________ 

 

 

(Affix Seal) 

 

 

126



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Ordinance Update – Chapter 32 – Town Organizations, Section 32.002 – Police 
Department/General Supervision. 

Action Requested: Approval of Ordinance Amendment. 

Attachment: DRAFT Ordinance Amendment. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 2/3/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Chapter 32, Section 32.002 of the Town of Winterville Code of Ordinance contains incorrect information 

about who has the responsibility for the General Supervision of the Police Department. Staff is therefore 

submitting an ordinance amendment removing the applicable section in its entirety. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Draft Ordinance Amendment. 

 

127



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-O-022 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina that Chapter 32 
of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Winterville is hereby amended as follows: 
 
CHAPTER 32: TOWN ORGANIZATIONS. 
 
§32.002 General Supervision is hereby deleted in its entirety. All section numbers denoted thereafter 
will be renumbered in numerical order as they are listed. 
 
This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of February 2025. 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

128



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Cemetery Expansion Project Update. 

Action Requested: Approval of Cemetery Expansion Project Update. 

Attachment: Information on Pricing will be Presented at the Meeting. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 2/3/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Town Staff has been getting pricing for the completion of the infrastructure for the cemetery expansion 

project. Pricing will be presented at the Council Meeting. Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director will be 

presenting said numbers. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval of Cemetery Expansion Project Update. 

 

129



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Betterment Decisions for Old Tar Rd Widening Project. 

Action Requested: Provide Staff with Recommendations for Betterments. 

Attachment: Betterment Example 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/27/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town has been approached by NCDOT asking for interest in continuity with the City of Greenville with 

regard to several betterments they have been directed by the City to make on the widening project. 

Black Pole and Mast: Please see the attached image. There will be 12 poles at a cost of $5,000 each. The 

standard pole and mast are silver. COG has requested black powder coated poles. The total cost of this 

betterment is $60,000 

Street Signage: NCDOT will provide standard signage on poles at the corner of the intersections. COG has 

requested luminated street signs to be installed on the mast. The luminated sign are $1,600 per sign. There 

will be an estimated $19,200 for signs in the project. The Town will be responsible for maintaining them in 

the future as well. 

Median Design Options - Grass, Covered Capped Concrete, or Plantings: The COG has decided to go with 

plantings. This would reduce the amount of maintenance and provide a more aesthetically pleasing entrance 

to the Town. We would have to mulch and take over the maintenance in the future. NCDOT will pay for the 

installation. This would be contracted out. 

Street Lighting: NCDOT would like to know if we are interested in having street lighting included with the 

project. This is actually an agreement that we would have to work out with Greenville Utilities Commission. 

They would typically install alternating lights every 120 feet. There will be sidewalks on both sides of the road 

as designed. The exact number and cost will have to be brought back to the Council. The plan is to have this 

information for you at the meeting. I am waiting on details from the City of Greenville, GUC and NCDOT. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Provide Staff Direction. 

 

130



 

131



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Financing Terms and Agreement with First Citizens Bank. 

Action Requested: Award Financing to First Citizens Bank. 

Attachment: Bid Tabulation, and Resolutions Approving Financing Terms. 

Prepared By: Jessica Manning, Finance Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town Council has approved the purchase of Town Christmas Lights and Decorations, a John Deere 

Gator for the Grounds and Maintenance department, a Service Body Truck, Crew Cab Truck, and a Mini 

Excavator for the Public Works department, a Paving Head for the Streets department, and a Sewer Crain 

Truck and Pump Replacements for the Sewer Department. The funding for these items were approved in the 

current fiscal year’s budget in the total amount of $631,000. 

We received quotes from 3 lending institutions. First Citizens Bank was the lowest bid with an interest rate of 

4.62% for the Christmas Lights and Decorations, 4.72% for the John Deere Gator, 4.57% for the Public 

Works Service Body Truck, Crew Cab Truck, and Mini Excavator, 4.67% for the Paving Head, and 4.52% for 

the Sewer Pump Replacements. First Citizens is also able to provide a lower interest rate of 4.37% for all 

items by combining the loans into one loan with separate amortization schedules for accounting purposes. 

We are recommending accepting First Citizens Bank’s proposal for all items, equipment, and vehicles with 

the combined interest rate of 4.37%. The Town Christmas Lights/Decorations, John Deere Gator, Service 

Body Truck, Crew Cab Truck, Mini Excavator, and Paving Head will be for a 3-year term. The Sewer Crain 

Truck and the Sewer Pump Replacements will be for a 5-year term. 

Budgetary Impact: Annual debt service payments in the amount of $176,600 for the first 3 years and 
$50,600 for the remaining 2 years. 

Recommendation: Approve the Financing Agreement and Resolutions. 

 

132



133



134



135



136



 Resolution No. 25-R-021 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS 
 

TOWN CHRISTMAS LIGHTS AND DECORATIONS 
 

WHEREAS: The Town of Winterville, NC ("Borrower") has previously determined to undertake a 
project for the financing of Town Christmas Lights and Decorations (the "Project"), and the Finance 
Officer has now presented a proposal for the financing of such Project. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. The Borrower hereby determines to finance the Project through First Citizens Bank ("Lender") 
in accordance with the proposal dated January 6, 2025. The amount financed shall not exceed 
$124,000, the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 
4.37%, and the financing term shall not exceed three (3) years from closing. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the "Financing 
Documents") shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and employees of the Borrower 
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all 
such further action as they may consider necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of the 
Project as contemplated by the proposal and this resolution. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the Financing 
Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents have been completed to 
such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to approve changes to any Financing 
Documents previously signed by Borrower officers or employees, provided that such changes shall not 
substantially alter the intent of such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms 
executed by such officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance 
Officer shall approve, with the Finance Officer' s release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document's final form. 

4. The Borrower shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 
cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for federal income 
tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. The Borrower hereby 
designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing Documents as 
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3). 

5. The Borrower intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the Borrower's 
official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that are to be financed from the proceeds of the 
Lender financing described above. The Borrower intends that funds that have been advanced, or that 
may be advanced, from the Borrower' s general fund or any other Borrower fund related to the 
Project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 

6. All prior actions of Borrower officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are hereby 
ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution 
are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
Approved this the 10th day of February 2025. 

 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

137



 Resolution No. 25-R-022 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS 
 

JOHN DEERE GATOR 
 

WHEREAS: The Town of Winterville, NC ("Borrower") has previously determined to undertake a 
project for the financing of a John Deere Gator (the "Project"), and the Finance Officer has now 
presented a proposal for the financing of such Project. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. The Borrower hereby determines to finance the Project through First Citizens Bank ("Lender") 
in accordance with the proposal dated January 6, 2025. The amount financed shall not exceed 
$25,000 the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 
4.37%, and the financing term shall not exceed three (3) years from closing. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the "Financing 
Documents") shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and employees of the Borrower 
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all 
such further action as they may consider necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of the 
Project as contemplated by the proposal and this resolution. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the Financing 
Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents have been completed to 
such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to approve changes to any Financing 
Documents previously signed by Borrower officers or employees, provided that such changes shall not 
substantially alter the intent of such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms 
executed by such officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance 
Officer shall approve, with the Finance Officer' s release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document's final form. 

4. The Borrower shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 
cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for federal income 
tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. The Borrower hereby 
designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing Documents as 
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3). 

5. The Borrower intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the Borrower's 
official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that are to be financed from the proceeds of the 
Lender financing described above. The Borrower intends that funds that have been advanced, or that 
may be advanced, from the Borrower' s general fund or any other Borrower fund related to the 
Project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 

6. All prior actions of Borrower officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are hereby 
ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution 
are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
Approved this the 10th day of February 2025. 

 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

138



 Resolution No. 25-R-023 

 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS 

 
2024 F-250 SERVICE BODY TRUCK, 2024 F-150 CREW CAB TRUCK, 

AND A BOBCAT MINI EXCAVATOR 
 

WHEREAS: The Town of Winterville, NC ("Borrower") has previously determined to undertake a 
project for the financing of a 2024 F-250 Service Body Truck, 2024 F-150 Crew Cab Truck, and a 
Bobcat Mini Excavator (the "Project"), and the Finance Officer has now presented a proposal for the 
financing of such Project. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. The Borrower hereby determines to finance the Project through First Citizens Bank ("Lender") 
in accordance with the proposal dated January 6, 2025. The amount financed shall not exceed 
$171,000 the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 
4.37%, and the financing term shall not exceed three (3) years from closing. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the "Financing 
Documents") shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and employees of the Borrower 
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all 
such further action as they may consider necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of the 
Project as contemplated by the proposal and this resolution. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the Financing 
Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents have been completed to 
such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to approve changes to any Financing 
Documents previously signed by Borrower officers or employees, provided that such changes shall not 
substantially alter the intent of such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms 
executed by such officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance 
Officer shall approve, with the Finance Officer' s release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document's final form. 

4. The Borrower shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 
cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for federal income 
tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. The Borrower hereby 
designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing Documents as 
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3). 

5. The Borrower intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the Borrower's 
official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that are to be financed from the proceeds of the 
Lender financing described above. The Borrower intends that funds that have been advanced, or that 
may be advanced, from the Borrower' s general fund or any other Borrower fund related to the 
Project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 

6. All prior actions of Borrower officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are hereby 
ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution 
are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
Approved this the 10th day of February 2025. 

 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

139



 Resolution No. 25-R-024 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS 
 

PAVING HEAD 
 

WHEREAS: The Town of Winterville, NC ("Borrower") has previously determined to undertake a 
project for the financing of a Paving Head (the "Project"), and the Finance Officer has now presented a 
proposal for the financing of such Project. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. The Borrower hereby determines to finance the Project through First Citizens Bank ("Lender") 
in accordance with the proposal dated January 6, 2025. The amount financed shall not exceed 
$58,000 the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 
4.37%, and the financing term shall not exceed three (3) years from closing. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the "Financing 
Documents") shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and employees of the Borrower 
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all 
such further action as they may consider necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of the 
Project as contemplated by the proposal and this resolution. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the Financing 
Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents have been completed to 
such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to approve changes to any Financing 
Documents previously signed by Borrower officers or employees, provided that such changes shall not 
substantially alter the intent of such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms 
executed by such officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance 
Officer shall approve, with the Finance Officer' s release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document's final form. 

4. The Borrower shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 
cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for federal income 
tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. The Borrower hereby 
designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing Documents as 
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3). 

5. The Borrower intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the Borrower's 
official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that are to be financed from the proceeds of the 
Lender financing described above. The Borrower intends that funds that have been advanced, or that 
may be advanced, from the Borrower' s general fund or any other Borrower fund related to the 
Project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 

6. All prior actions of Borrower officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are hereby 
ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution 
are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
Approved this the 10th day of February 2025. 

 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

140



 Resolution No. 25-R-025 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS 
 

SEWER CRANE TRUCK AND SEWER PUMP REPLACEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS: The Town of Winterville, NC ("Borrower") has previously determined to undertake a 
project for the financing of a Sewer Crane Truck and Sewer Pump Replacements (the "Project"), and 
the Finance Officer has now presented a proposal for the financing of such Project. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. The Borrower hereby determines to finance the Project through First Citizens Bank ("Lender") 
in accordance with the proposal dated January 6, 2025. The amount financed shall not exceed 
$253,000 the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 
4.37%, and the financing term shall not exceed five (5) years from closing. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the "Financing 
Documents") shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and employees of the Borrower 
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all 
such further action as they may consider necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of the 
Project as contemplated by the proposal and this resolution. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the Financing 
Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents have been completed to 
such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to approve changes to any Financing 
Documents previously signed by Borrower officers or employees, provided that such changes shall not 
substantially alter the intent of such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms 
executed by such officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance 
Officer shall approve, with the Finance Officer' s release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document's final form. 

4. The Borrower shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 
cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for federal income 
tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. The Borrower hereby 
designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing Documents as 
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3). 

5. The Borrower intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the Borrower's 
official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that are to be financed from the proceeds of the 
Lender financing described above. The Borrower intends that funds that have been advanced, or that 
may be advanced, from the Borrower' s general fund or any other Borrower fund related to the 
Project, for project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 

6. All prior actions of Borrower officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are hereby 
ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution 
are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
Approved this the 10th day of February 2025. 

 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

141



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Redesign of Town Hall and Downtown Parking 

Action Requested: Approve the concept plan. 

Attachment: Concept Site Plan 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/27/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff has given direction to ARK Consulting for the design of Downtown parking options. Council had 

historically wanted to open Church Street back up to 2-way traffic. If we do this, we would lose 18 parking 

spots behind Town Hall and behind the Police/Fire/Rescue facility combined. 

To re-open the street we are recommending that we make Depot Street one way. This will include an 

improvement to the Town’s Drive through at the Town Hall. The drive through will be straightened out, so 

that it is easier to navigate for Utility and Tax Customers. It also includes the addition of a better designed 

access for the solid waste container and a pad located next to the Town Hall for the installation of a new 

generator for emergency backup power. 

This concept provides an additional 17 spots at the Town Hall, and an additional 16 parking spots at the 

Town Square. This would provide 33 new spots. Many of which are located conveniently for Downtown 

patrons. 

This would also allow the Town to install a new Town Hall sign that may or may not be digital. This would be 

a council decision. 

This would be a net gain of 15 parking spots in the Downtown area. 

Budgetary Impact: Cost estimate to be calculated based on concept approval. 

Recommendation: Provide staff with feedback and approval of the concept plan. 

 

142



9'

26'

28' 18.5'

33.5' 18.5'

26'

18.5'

EX. 36'±

19'

GE
N

ER
AT

O
R 

PA
D

DU
M

PS
TE

R
EN

CL
O

SU
RE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
O

N
-S

TR
EE

T
PA

RK
IN

G 
(4

 S
PA

CE
S)

PROPOSED ON-STREET

PARKING (13 SPACES)

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
O

N
-S

TR
EE

T
PA

RK
IN

G 
(1

6 
SP

AC
ES

)

Le
ge

nd

SF
LO

D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
PR

O
PO

SE
D

70 PG
 2

2.
00

TC
 2

2.
00

TA
 2

2.
00

BC
 2

2.
00

925-A  Conference Drive
Greenville, NC  27858
(252) 558-0888
www.arkconsultinggroup.com

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS

D
ec

em
be

r 4
, 2

02
4

D
ra

w
n 

By
:

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

um
be

r:
24

12
0

D
-1

51
7

ST
A

C
ED G

P

D
at

e:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

DESCRIPTION DATE # Town of Winterville, Pitt County, North Carolina

DEPOT & CHURCH STREET
PARKING IMPROVEMENTS

0
8
/X
X/
2
0
2
4

PRELIM
IN

ARY

Do N
ot 

Use

for
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n

NC License: P-1199

Vi
ci

ni
ty

 M
ap

SC
AL

E:
 1

" =
 1

00
0'SI

TE

C
1.

0

SITE PLAN

0

SC
AL

E
1 

in
ch

 =
   

   
   

   
ft

20
'

20

20
'

10
'

RE
VI

SE

TY
SO

N 
ST

.

DE
PO

T 
   

  S
T.

RAILROAD ST.

M
AI

N
 S

T.

MILL ST.

CHAPMAN ST.

WINTERVILLE PKWY.

CHURCH ST.

JONES ST.

N
O

RT
H

  S
T.

143



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Designated parking in front of Cooper’s Cup downtown business. 

Action Requested: Provide Staff direction on request made by Mr. Biscardi at the December meeting. 

Attachment: None 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 1/27/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Mr. Lee Biscardi appeared before the Council at our December meeting. He requested a designated parking 

spot for his business, Cooper’s Cup, which is located in the Downtown area. He has since contacted several 

employees inquiring about the status. 

Staff has discussed the issue and determined that it is public parking and should not be dedicated to one 

business. There is also a problem with enforcement. 

There is also the issue that other business may want the same thing once precedence it set and how would 

spots be allocated properly. 

Budgetary Impact: Cost of the sign, and enforcement. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends to keep all parking open to the general public. 

 

144



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Ron Mills, Interim Electric Utilities Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Church Street Substation Relay Replacements. 

Action Requested: Approval of RGRID Engineering to Replace 4 Breaker Relays at Church Street 
Substation. 

Attachment: : RGRID Engineering Scope of Work and Quote for Relay Replacement. 

Prepared By: Ron Mills, Interim Electric Utilities Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp – 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Town of Winterville’s Church Street Substation is having issues with the control relays in all of our station 

breakers. These relays are a vital part of protection for TOW infrastructure and our reliability. The display on 

each of our four breakers are malfunctioning, meaning that none of the visual readings are legible. This is an 

issue with the ABB 2000i relays. RGRID deemed relays needed replacing instead of trying to address 

current issues and suggested going with a Schweitzer relay instead of the ABB that is currently failing. The 

scope of work includes purchasing, verifying existing settings on current relays, incorporating settings into 

the new components and commissioning for operation. This quote is for a turnkey job without any additional 

monies needed. 

Budgetary Impact: The FYE 24-25 Budget allocated monies ($35,000) for this particular project in 
Substation Maintenance. 

Recommendation: Approval of the Contract to RGRID Power PLLC to replace relays. 

 

145



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Mid-East Representative. 

Action Requested: Select a Mid-East Representative. 

Attachment: NA. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Town Council needs to select a representative to Mid-East Board. This person must be an elected official 

or a member of the Town Staff. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Select a Mid-East Representative. 

 

146



 
January 24, 2025 
 
 
Mr. Ron Mills 
Electric Director 
Town of Winterville 
2936 Church Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
 
Subject: Church Street Sub Relay Replacements 
 
Dear Ron, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide engineering services to the Town of Winterville. Attached is our 
proposed scope of work to complete the engineering design, coordination, and commissioning for the 
replacement of (4) ABB DPU-2000R relays with (4) SEL 351Ss, part# 0351S5XHE2H5221 in your Church 
Street Substation. 
 
RGrid Power proposes to complete this project on an hourly basis for the scope of work needed to obtain 
the new relays and place them in service. Our proposed Engineering fee for the scope detailed in this 
document is $35,000.  
 
Please review our proposal and contact me with any questions. We will proceed upon authorization. 
Thank you for the opportunity to assist Winterville with this project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Robert S. Beadle, PE, PMP 
Director – Substations and Grid Resiliency 
 
 
Cc: Peter Rant, PE 
       Amanda Sevier 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

147



Scope of Work

Site Visit and Check Availability 

RGrid Power will assist the Town of Winterville with the activity needed to replace the (4) existing ABB 
DPU-2000R relays in the Church Street Substation with new relays. This process will include: 

• Verify existing relays and relay settings.
• Coordinate specifications with approved relay suppliers.
• Make arrangements for the relays to be delivered to the Town of Winterville.

Relay Purchase and Commissioning 

In conjunction with the completion of relay delivery, RGrid Power will proceed with verifying the existing 
settings and commissioning the new relays. This process will include the following: 

• Capturing any/all settings from the existing relays.
• Checking the existing settings.
• Incorporating settings into the new relays and commissioning them for new operation.
• Provide as installed settings for the Town of Winterville’s records.

The following is a breakdown of estimated fees for the project. The process may not take as long, and only 
hours worked will be billed. All travel expenses and a relay test set fee of $250/day are included in the 
costs. 

Engineering Fees 

Task Description of Services      Cost  

1. Site Visit and Settings Development $   6,560   
2. Relay Purchase and Commissioning $  28,440 

Total Combined $ 35,000 

Approvals: 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 
Ron Mills Peter Rant, PE 
Electric System Director President 
Town of Winterville, NC RGrid Power PLLC 

148



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2025 

Presenter: Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Appointment of Stormwater Advisory Board Alternate Member. 

Action Requested: Appoint of Stormwater Advisory Board Alternate Member. 

Attachment: Application 

Prepared By: Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director Date: 1/29/2025 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 2/3/2025 ☒ TM: 2/3/2025 ☒ Final: tlp - 2/3/2025 

Supporting Documentation 

Stormwater Advisory Alternate Member Board Appointment 

The Stormwater Advisory Committee is made up of five (5) regular members and one (1) alternate member. 

Members serve a three (3) year term for the purpose of providing stormwater management policy guidance 

to the Town. 

The Committee shall consist of members of a cross section of local citizens and stakeholders representing 

neighborhood groups, professional organizations, industrial and commercial association, environmental 

groups, builders’ associations, and others that the Town recognizes as having an interest in stormwater 

management issues. 

There is currently an application on file in which the applicant indicated Stormwater Advisory as their interest 

or preference. The applicant is a Town resident as follows: 

• Raymond James (Alternate) 

Staff recommends that the applicant listed below be appointed to a three (3) year term on the Stormwater 

Advisory Committee. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Appointment of Raymond James as an alternate to a three (3) year term to the 
Stormwater Advisory Committee. 

 

149



Received 11/04/24 DAH

150


	00_20250210_Agenda_Final
	09_01_Proclamation_Black_History_Month_2025
	10_01a_Presentation_Abstract_Comp_Planv2
	10_01b_Winterville Final presentation
	11_01a_PH_Abstract_Copper_Creek_Annexv2
	11_01b_Petition_Copper_Creek_Annex
	11_01c_Map_Copper_Creek_Annex
	11_01d_Legal Description_Copper_Creek_Annex
	11_01e_Certified_Mailings_Copper_Creek_Annex
	11_01f_Draft_Ordinance_25-O-021_Copper_Creek_Annex
	13_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	13_01b_20241209_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	13_01c_20241212_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	13_02a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amend_24-25-6v2
	13_02b_Budget_Amendment_2024-2025-6
	13_03a_Consent_Abstract_Vision_Zero_Committeev2
	13_04a_Consent_Abstract_Neal_Rezoningv2
	13_04b_Application_Neal_Rezoning
	13_04c_Map_Neal_Rezoning
	13_04d_Legal_Decsription_Neal_Rezoning
	13_04e_Staff_Report_Neal_Rezoning
	13_05a_Consent_Abstract_Mellon_Rezoningv2
	13_05b_Application_Mellon_Rezoning
	13_05c_Map_Mellon_Rezoning
	13_05d_Legal_Description_Mellon_Rezoning
	13_05e_Staff_Report_Mellon_Rezoning
	13_06a_Consent_Abstract_TA_Loving_CO#1v2
	13_06b_TA_Loving_CO#1_Unexecuted
	13_07a_Consent_Abstract_Land_Purchasev2
	13_07b_Balderas_Ellis_Offer_to_Purchase
	13_07c_Z-2736_Ellis_Division_Map_Prelim
	14_01a_Old_Abstract_Christ_Covenantv2
	14_01b_Christ Covenant_Subordination Agreement
	14_02a_Old_Abstract_Ordinance_Updatev2
	14_02b_Draft_Ordinance_#25-O-022_Amendmentv2
	14_03a_Old_Abstract_Cemetery_Updatev2
	15_01a_New_Abstract_NCDOT_Old_Tar_Rdv2
	15_01b_Betterments_Example_Attachment
	15_02a_New_Abstract_Approve_Financing_Termsv2
	15_02b_2024-2025 Financing Documentation
	15_02c_Christmas_Lights_Resolution_25-R-021
	15_02d_John_Deere_Gator_Resolution_25-R-022
	15_02e_Service_Crew_Truck_Excavator Resolution_25-R-023
	15_02f_Paving_Head_Resolution_25-R-024
	15_02g_Sewer_Truck_Pump_Replace_Resolution_25-R-025
	15_03a_New_Abstract_Depot_Church_Planv2
	15_03b_Depot_and_Church_St_Parking_Site
	15_04a_New_Abstract_Coopers_Cup_Parkingv2
	15_05a_New_Abstract_Relay_Replacementv2
	15_06a_New_Abstract_Mid-East_Repv2
	15_06b_Church_St_Relay_Replacement_RGRID
	15_07a_New_Abstract_Stormwater_Adv_Appointv2
	15_07b_Ray_James_Application



